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SIMPLICITY
IS OUR FOCUS.
In today’s complex business, we think simplicity brings success. Despite our 
ever-changing industry and the evolving retail landscape, we remain focused. 
We rely on our mission, strategy and core beliefs. To us, they’re more than 
just words on paper—they’re our compass and our path to success. 

“While product, quality and service 
may seem like an overly simple 
description of why our customers do 
business with us, it is our consistency 
in executing on all three counts that 
keeps them coming back.”
At Stanley Furniture Company, we believe everything starts with the product. 
Without it, nothing else matters. What differentiates us is our ability to 
design and produce the products consumers want, at a price they’re willing 
to pay, and consistently ship our product faster than many in our industry. 

It’s just that simple.

MISSION STATEMENT:
Profi tably offer the best product in the 
Stanley Furniture segment and support it 
with excellent quality and service.

STRATEGY:
Position Stanley as a wood resource in 
the upper-medium residential market 
segment offering a diversifi ed product line 
distributed through multiple channels.

CORE BELIEFS:
Style leadership with a value orientation 
supported by excellent quality and service 
is the foundation for success.

Uncompromising integrity in all our 
dealings will ensure that associates, 
customers and suppliers are always treated 
with respect and fairness.

Superior profi tability will assure 
perpetuation of the Company and the 
well-being of our stockholders, associates, 
customers and community neighbors. 
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Sales and earnings:
  Net sales -8%  $282,847 $307,547 $333,646 $305,815 $265,263
  Operating income -97%  732  22,729  37,442 34,688 26,216
  Net income   - 65% 5,902 16,781 23,231 20,789 15,150

Per share:
  Net income, diluted -61% $        .55 $      1.41   $      1.77 $      1.59 $      1.17 
  Dividends paid    +25%     .40 .32 .24  .20 .10
  Market price at year end   - 44%  12.00 21.45 23.18 22.48 15.75

Financial position at year end:
  Cash  $  31,648 $    6,269     $  12,556 $    7,632 $    2,509
  Current maturities of long-term debt  1,428 2,857 2,857 4,257 7,014
  Working capital excluding cash and 
     current maturities of long-term debt  61,632 68,624 81,501  85,192 68,960
  Total assets  173,731 162,678  190,488 188,888 164,203
  Total debt  30,714 8,571 11,428 15,685 22,700
  Stockholders’ equity   102,851 109,647 132,749 127,265 102,558
  Total debt as a percentage  
    of total capitalization  23.0% 7.3%   7.9%   11.0%   18.1%
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+21% +37% +12% -28% -65%



FOCUSED ON THE FUTURE.

To my Fellow Shareholders,

2007 was another challenging year for both the furniture industry and 
Stanley Furniture.

While the industry-wide slowdown that began in late 2005 showed 
signs of abating in early 2007, business conditions worsened as the year 
progressed and we now find ourselves mired in the longest and deepest 
 “furniture depression” in a generation, possibly ever.  As a result, 
our sales decreased 8%, net income was down 65% and earnings per 
share were 61% lower than 2006. These results include a pension plan 
termination charge recorded in the second 
quarter, expenses due to the conversion 
of our Martinsville, Virginia facility from a 
manufacturing to warehousing operation 
during the fourth quarter, and CDSOA 
income for both years.

Despite these results and challenging 
times, our financial position remains strong 
and I am confident we have a mission that 
differentiates us from the competition, a 
strategy that provides for profitable growth 
and an enthusiastic and engaged management 
team that is preparing the company for the 
eventual upturn in business.  
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“I am confident we have a 
mission that differentiates us 

from the competition...”

JEFFREY R. SCHEFFER
Chairman, President & CEO

A message from our Chairman
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FOCUSED ON FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Disciplined allocation of capital remains a high priority. As a result of our strong cash flow, our excellent financial 
position and positive long-term outlook, we continue to invest in the future of the business and use significant 
amounts of cash to repurchase our stock and pay cash dividends.  We have used nearly $150 million in the past 
dozen years to repurchase our stock and thereby increase your proportionate ownership of the Company by 83%, 
net of new shares issued in connection with our stock compensation plans. Since initiating a cash dividend in 
2003, we have increased the per share amount fourfold including a 25% increase in 2007.

We took advantage of attractive borrowing terms in early 2007 to add $25 million of long-term debt to our balance 
sheet. We ended 2007 with total debt of $30.7 million and cash on hand of $31.6 million.

During 2007, strong cash flow from operations and $25 million in proceeds from additional borrowings were 
used to repurchase 639,331 shares of the Company’s common stock for $13.6 million, pay cash dividends of 
$4.2 million, make scheduled debt payments of $2.9 million, invest $4.0 million in capital improvements and 
increase cash on hand by $25.4 million. Working capital, excluding cash and current maturities of long term debt, 
decreased $7.0 million, or 10.2%, primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable and inventories reflecting 
lower sales.

FOCUSED ON ATTRACTING AND RETAINING CUSTOMERS

Our mission is how we attract and retain customers:  “Profitably offer the best product in the Stanley Furniture 
segment and support it with excellent quality and service.”  It defines who we are, what we stand for and what we 
seek to continuously improve.  In a consumer goods business we believe everything starts with product – without 
it, not much else matters.  Having a product that consumers want at a price she is willing to pay attracts customers; 
shipping a quality product – consistently faster than anyone in the industry – is how we differentiate Stanley 
Furniture from the competition and retain our retail partners.  While “product, quality and service” may seem 
like an overly simple description of why our customers do business with us, it is our consistency in executing on 
all three counts that keeps them coming back.  In essence, Simplify.



FOCUSED ON
AN INTEGRATED BUSINESS STRATEGY

By most accounts, 80% of the residential wood furniture sold in the U.S. comes 
from Asia, primarily China.  With only a few exceptions, all of our former domestic 
competitors have shuttered their factories and now find themselves “in the middle”, 
buying product offshore and reselling it here.  While this has been a successful 
strategy for some, because markets are efficient we believe that over time the retailer 
will return to buying directly from the manufacturer.  So the question is:  How does 
Stanley Furniture best add value in the supply chain?  

The answer is our integrated business strategy.  While our mission guides our 
management team, it is strategy that drives our actions.  And our integrated business 
strategy for profitably growing the company remains unchanged:  A diversified 
product line sold through multiple distribution channels backed by competitive 
operational advantages.

Our diversified product line focuses exclusively on the upper-medium-priced 
residential wood market and features more than 3,500 items encompassing every 
major style category for every room of the home.  Whether it is baby furniture 
for the nursery, a bunk bed for a child’s bedroom, home entertainment furniture 
equipped for the latest in technology for either the family room or kid’s playroom, 
office furniture for working at home, dining furniture for casual or formal settings, 
bedroom furniture for the master suite or second bedroom, or furniture for the 
second home... our well-styled products are designed for every stage of life – from 
the Gen Y’er just starting out to a retiring Baby Boomer. It is style made simple.  
Importantly, this vast selection provides our retailers with a broad array of solutions 
for their customer’s design needs – a solutions-based selling platform now rare in a 
marketplace dominated by the commoditized styling and highly edited assortments 
of the importers.

Our diversified product line is distributed nationally through approximately 3,500 
customers, including independent full-line furniture stores, specialty retailers, 
regional chains, designers and e-tailers, as well as internationally in 40 countries.  
Because channel preferences change over time and retailers come and go, our  
 “open policy” of selling in multiple channels provides us the flexibility necessary to 
ensure our products are exposed to as many potential Stanley Furniture consumers 
as possible.

Perhaps the most unique component of our integrated business strategy is that 
it involves a combination of sourcing and significant domestic manufacturing.  
Combining the best of what can be done in our own factories with the best of what 
can be done elsewhere in the world has allowed us to “style-up our product lines 
without pricing up”.  This strategy has made our product lines more complete and 
exciting while at the same time keeping us out of the deflationary trap that has hurt 
those who have chosen to compete primarily on price.  Importantly, while others in 
our industry have rushed to close their manufacturing facilities, our ability to still 
produce approximately two-thirds of what we sell in our three domestic facilities 
provides us the competitive advantage necessary to consistently execute a value 
proposition built on selection, quality and fast delivery – style made simple; delivery 
made fast; and quality made certain. Supply chains that begin on the other side of 
the world cannot duplicate our business model.  
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A message from our Chairman
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FOCUSED ON REDUCING COSTS

We made considerable progress in reducing our cost structure 
in 2007.  Short term, we have better aligned production 
levels with demand.  During the first quarter of 2007 we 
rationalized our Robbinsville, North Carolina production 
levels by reducing headcount approximately 40%. During 
the fourth quarter, we began the process of consolidating 
our Martinsville, Virginia production into our Stanleytown, 
Virginia plant and converting the Martinsville facility into 
a warehousing operation. In addition, we continued our 
use of lean business principles as part of our continuous 
improvement efforts and we conducted 127 week-long 
Rapid Improvement Events involving nearly one-fourth of 
our associates.  Most of these events focused on the creation 
of manufacturing cells, establishing standard work, and 
reducing machine set-up time. In 2008, our efforts will focus 
on better linking the cells and enhancing manufacturing 
flow through our factories and continuing to develop a lean 
thinking culture. These actions still leave us with ample 
capacity to grow the business and position us to leverage 
operating improvements when business conditions improve.

FOCUSED ON 
IMPROVING OUR PRODUCTS

Because everything we do starts with product, I’m pleased 
to report we made considerable progress in 2007 improving 
the design of our product lines. On the Collections, or adult, 
side of our business, we have worked hard to bring our 
product offerings “back to center.”  History is a great teacher 
and experience has served as a motivator to refocus product 
design of the past several years that ventured too far into the 
fringes of our market segment. While these introductions 
were well-styled and well accepted by our retail base, there 
simply wasn’t enough consumer demand.  Combined with the 
rationalization of our SKU counts and planning a pipeline 
full of solid products to be introduced during 2008 and early 
2009, our Collections business is positioned to be back on 
track when business improves.

In Young America, our industry leading line of baby and youth 
furniture, we had perhaps the industry’s most successful new 
product roll-out;  the 30-piece offering called myHaven (see 
page 11). myHaven is extraordinarily unique in that all 30 
pieces are available in 20 different colors, capitalizing on the 
growing trend of personalization and customization.  Demand 
for this product exceeded our original projections and 
manufacturing capabilities for it, thus limiting actual sales.
We enter 2008 ready to realize myHaven’s true sales potential. 
And like our Collections business, our pipeline of products 
planned for Young America is full through early 2009.

“In Young America...we had 
perhaps the industry’s most 

successful new product roll-out”



FOCUSED ON 
RETAIL’S CHANGING LANDSCAPE

While the transfer of wood furniture manufacturing from the U.S. to 
Asia has dominated our industry’s consciousness during the last six 
to eight years, a quiet shift in where consumers prefer to shop for 
furniture is now underway. Mom and pop furniture stores and regional 
chains alike are being challenged by the likes of lifestyle retailers such 
as Crate & Barrel and Pottery Barn, big box retailers such as Costco and 
Wal-Mart, countless designers and catalogs, and a number of emerging 
e-tailers coming onto the scene.  While it is difficult to quantify the 
channel shift, even a 5% shift in “channel share” is significant in a 
wholesale residential wood market estimated to be in excess of $20 
billion.  So the challenge is to be sure our product is available wherever 
consumers prefer to shop for better, well-styled furniture.

The power of our strategy of distributing through multiple channels is 
that it provides the flexibility to pursue new business in both traditional 
retail as well as emerging channels.  And clearly, not every channel is 
a fit for us.  While our consumer demographic may shop at the big 
box retailers, we don’t believe her home is furnished solely through 
them.  Rather, she may work with an independent designer, a local 
specialty retailer, or with an e-tailer in the privacy of her home.  In any 
case, industry data suggests there is a 60% chance she will research her 
purchase online, which necessitates a best-in-class, consumer friendly 
Web site.  This will be a key 2008 initiative as we believe our Web site 
will rapidly become the new face of our company.

A message from our ChairmanA message from our Chairman

“...we are positioning 
Stanley Furniture for an 

exceptionally bright future.”
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FOCUSED ON GROWTH

Furniture is typically an event driven purchase.  Have a baby -- buy a crib.  Move 
into a new home – buy new bedroom furniture. And make no mistake, the 
home furnishings industry is tied to the housing market.  Experts estimate that 
a significant portion of all furniture purchases are in one way or another tied to 
new and existing home sales.  When we look at this current business cycle, what’s 
different is that it is housing driven. While the general economy may not be in a 
recession, housing and furniture are experiencing their own “depression”, and 
frankly we don’t expect the furniture business to significantly improve until 
housing recovers.  

Fortunately, demand for furniture never changes.  What varies from time to 
time is a consumer’s willingness to spend money on it.  History indicates the 
longer this current cycle persists, the harder and stronger business will bounce 
back. Interestingly, this is the first down cycle our industry has experienced 
since the shift of wood furniture manufacturing to China.  And while it is true 
there is an abundance of manufacturing capacity worldwide, the Asian factory 
owner has reduced his workforce, too.  How quickly he is able to rehire and 
train new workers may very well impact his deliveries for a two- to three-year 
period following the eventual recovery.  Our ability to still manufacture many 
of the items we now source will mitigate our exposure to a potentially longer 
supply chain and this, too, is something we are poised to address in 2008.  To 
be sure, the eventual recovery will highlight the benefits of a short supply chain 
and fast shipping.  

CDSOA UPDATE

We recorded income of $10.4 million, net of legal expenses and related 
settlements, in 2007 from the receipt of funds under the Continued Dumping  
and Subsidy Offset Act of 2000 (CDSOA) from the case involving wooden 
bedroom furniture imported from China. This compares to $4.4 million 
recorded in 2006. We should receive a significant amount of additional 
CDSOA funds over the next several years from dumping duties collected by 
the U.S. government through September 2007 that are yet to be distributed to 
eligible domestic producers pending various legal and bureaucratic processes.  
Based on current law, duties collected after September 2007 will remain in the 
U.S. Treasury.

THANK YOU

I would like to express my sincere appreciation to associates throughout our 
company for their support and diligent work during a challenging year.  I’d also 
like to thank our Board of Directors for their involvement, contributions and 
insights, and our customers for their trust in our company.

Lastly, let me thank you, our shareholder, for your confidence in what we are 
doing. I’m confident, despite the results of 2007 and an uncertain 2008, that we 
are positioning Stanley Furniture for an exceptionally bright future.
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JEFFREY R. SCHEFFER
Chairman, President & CEO



We continually challenge ourselves to simplify. From our business processes 
and operations to our product design and marketing, we’re seeing the 
benefi ts that come from embracing simplicity. Our focus is on producing 
a diverse product line backed by our signature solutions of fast shipping, 
superior quality and smooth business transactions. By making it simple, we 
make it successful and profi table.

Consumers want simplicity as well. The retail furniture shopping experience 
can be stressful and overwhelming. Yet when it comes down to it, most 
consumers’ needs are simple: they want quality products available in a 
variety of styles at a good value. So that’s our strategy.

One way we’ve taken the complexity out of furniture shopping is by creating 
our ‘Style Made Simple’ concept. It’s a simple way to communicate the 
broad range of styles available in the Stanley Furniture line. Contemporary, 
Transitional, Cottage and Traditional — it’s easy to see that we offer more 
breadth and selection than many of our competitors. We span these major 
styles with a variety of looks and price points designed to fi t different tastes 
and budgets. Our high-quality furnishings are perfect for every room 
in the house. Whether it is bedroom, dining room, home offi ce, home 
entertainment or accent tables, we’ve got the solution. 

It’s just that simple.

EMBRACING 
SIMPLICITY.

It’s a simple way to 
communicate the broad 

range of styles available in 
the Stanley Furniture line. 
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SIMPLY EXCEPTIONAL COLLECTIONS.
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HUDSON STREET
Sophisticated with a hint of glamour, we’ve created this stylish collection to be 
elegant yet welcoming. Perfect for those who appreciate the finer things, Hudson 
Street boasts straightforward lines softened by graceful ovals, curved fronts, and 
gently splayed legs. With beaded details and custom hardware it instantly commands 
attention.  

Its clean, straightforward design is accented with two rich, versatile color finishes—
dark espresso and warm cocoa. These stunning finishes give the collection two slightly 
different personalities, each equally at home amidst fine décor.

Elegant and  upscale, Hudson Street imbues its mid-20th century design character 
with historical nuances. The sophistication of the 1930s, 40s, and 50s is captured in 
the collection’s elegant detailing and classic profiles.  And we’ve included modern day 
influences to create the unexpected with elements such as natural dark emperador 
marble and sandstone-colored fabrics. 
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MONTECITO
Nothing compares to the beauty of the California 
coastline, except furnishings that draw inspiration from 
there. Montecito has an unmistakably luxurious feel, yet 
remains relaxed and comfortable thanks to its generous 
scale and proportion.

Elegant materials are used throughout to distinguish this 
exquisite collection. Plush fabrics of chocolate leather 
and sumptuous velvet set a tone of easy elegance and 
refined sensibility. While accents of marble and iron add 
a touch of Mediterranean styling. 

Featuring a highly distressed finish on aged maple, this 
traditionally inspired group captures the warmth and 
timeworn beauty of handcrafted furniture. Details such as 
elaborate turnings on legs and posts, intricate moldings 
and hammered metal hardware complete the look. 

SUNSET KEY
The relaxed beauty of island living is captured in our 
Sunset Key collection. Reminiscent of sun-drenched 
days and quietly magnificent sunsets, it is a group that 
reinterprets the breezy attitude of West Indies tropical 
design.

Exhibiting an easygoing character, the collection is 
distinguished by a warm, heavily distressed rum finish. 
Add to this a unique mix of materials—such as woven 
cane, split rattan, abacca, and kenai sea grass—and you 
have the epitome of island beauty.

Antique weathered brass hardware and subtle antique 
metal accents highlight Sunset Key’s rich design details. 
Half-round column pilasters, nautilus and pineapple 
motif leg carvings, and beaded drawer fronts are just a few 
of its unique elements. Together its special combination 
of style and materials create a collection that is both laid-
back and intriguing.



No place is simplicity more welcome and appropriate than with youth 
furniture. Parents want quality furnishings that are safe, stylish and will 
take their kids from crib to college and beyond. Young America’s Built 
to Grow program is simply a great solution.

Before you know it, infants have grown into soccer players and teens 
are applying for college. The journey is a complex maze of changing 
emotions, desires and needs. Young America makes one part of it easy—
creating the perfect room. From a crib that converts to a toddler bed, 
daybed, headboard and footboard, to our multifunctional bookcase and 
wall systems, we’ve got it covered.

The Built to Grow concept is leading the industry in style and versatility 
and has become the gold standard for infant and youth furnishings. 
From classic styles to funky painted finishes, our selection makes it easy 
to create a room as individual as the child that lives there. Our Young 
America furniture exceeds expectations today, tomorrow and beyond.
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SIMPLE SOLUTIONS.

1

2

3

4

Your infant needs sleep. 

Focus on a safe, comfor t ing environment where you can
easi ly reach things without disturbing your child.

Your preschooler is curious about the world. 

Choose furniture that promotes safe exploration, and
can hold al l  the toys that go along with it.

Your tween needs space to study and play. 

Focus on furniture that can play mult iple roles, so the
room doesn’ t become too crowded.

Your teen needs storage, storage and storage.

Make sure his or her refuge has space for everything so
it doesn’t just end up on the floor.

preschool

infant

tween

teen

No two kids are alike, and with the myHaven collection 
their rooms don’t have to be either. With tantalizing 
colors and classic silhouettes, this vibrant group makes it 
easy to create one-of-a-kind looks. 

Ask any child what their favorite color is, and they’ll 
happily tell you. We’ve captured those favorites in our 
mix-n-match color palette of painted finishes. From 
traditional Antique White to Sunflower Yellow and  
Cotton Candy Pink, all the pieces in the myHaven 
collection — from cribs to Armoires — are available in 
enticing colors. 

With personalization at its height of popularity, this 
clever collection makes customization fun and functional. 
Never before have we offered our high-quality youth 
furnishings  in such a wide range of fashionable colors. 
So whether they choose Sour Apple Green for all the 
pieces in the room, or just as an accent, myHaven is 
about helping kids make their rooms their own.
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This dynamic collection offers a fresh twist on 
children’s furnishings. Designed for today’s more 
sophisticated youth, it blends classic styling with modern 
interpretations of timeless silhouettes. Plus it has two 
distinct finishes, each with its own personality. 

GenAmerica bridges transitional and contemporary 
design with a choice of finishes and a variety of must-have 
pieces.  A clear, Classic Cherry finish on warm Cherry 
solids and veneers gives a transitional feel. While a Dark 
Merlot finish brings an urban, more contemporary 
appeal. Traditional pieces such as the Dresser and 
Armoire can be paired with the Platform Bed for an 
updated, style-driven look.

This hip design features hints of classic Shaker and 
Mission influences updated with a mix of materials. 
Brushed nickel hardware, spindle details, geometric 
grid patterns, and woven storage baskets combine both 
fashion and function. GenAmerica is definitely not your 
parents’ furniture.

genAmerica
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Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.    
 

PART I 
Item 1. Business 
 
General 
 

We are a leading designer and manufacturer of residential wood furniture exclusively targeted at the upper-
medium price range.  We offer diversified product lines across all major style and product categories within this 
price range.  This product depth and extensive style selection makes us a complete wood furniture resource for 
retailers in our price range and allows us to respond more quickly to shifting consumer preferences.  We have 
established a broad distribution network that includes independent furniture stores, department stores, regional 
furniture chains, e-tailers and designers.  To provide our products and support this broad distribution network, we 
have implemented a blended operating strategy combining efficient and flexible manufacturing processes with 
offshore sourcing of selected items.  We incorporate selected imported finished items in our product line to lower 
costs, provide design flexibility and offer a better value to our customers.  We emphasize continuous improvement 
utilizing lean business principles on an enterprise wide basis to enable us to continue providing competitive 
advantages to our customers, such as breadth of selection, quick delivery, reduced inventory investment, high 
quality and value. 
 
Products and Styles 
 

Our product offerings cover all major design categories and include dining room, bedroom, home office, 
home entertainment, accent tables and infant and youth furniture marketed as Young America®.  We believe that 
the diversity of our product lines enables us to anticipate and respond quickly to changing consumer preferences 
and provides retailers a complete wood furniture resource in the upper-medium price range.  We believe that our 
products represent good value and that the quality and style of our furniture combined with our broad selection and 
quick delivery differentiates our products in the marketplace. 
 

We provide products in a variety of woods and finishes.  Our products are designed to appeal to a broad 
range of consumers and cover all major style categories including traditional, contemporary, transitional and 
cottage designs. 
 

We design and develop new product styles each year to replace discontinued items or styles and, if desired, 
to expand product lines.  Our product design process begins with marketing personnel identifying customer 
preferences and conceptualizing product ideas, which generally consist of a group of related furniture pieces. A 
variety of sketches are produced, usually by Company designers, from which prototype furniture pieces are built 
prior to full-scale production.  We consult with our marketing personnel, sales representatives and selected 
customers throughout this process and introduce our new product styles primarily at the fall and spring 
international furniture markets. 
 
Distribution 
 

We have developed a broad domestic and international customer base and sell our furniture through 
approximately 60 independent sales representatives to independent furniture retailers, department stores and 
regional furniture chains, e-tailers and designers.  Representative customers in alphabetical order include, Carson 
Pirie Scott & Co., Furnitureland South, Gorman’s Furniture, Jordan’s Furniture, Kittles Home Furnishings Center, 
Inc., Louis Shanks, Mathis Brothers, Nebraska Furniture Mart, Raymour & Flanigan, Robb & Stucky, 
Schneiderman’s Furniture, Treasures Furniture, and Walter E. Smithe Furniture Inc.  We believe this broad 
network reduces exposure to regional recessions, and allows us to capitalize on emerging channels of distribution.  
We offer tailored marketing programs to address each channel of distribution. 
 

The general marketing practice followed in the furniture industry is to exhibit products at international and 
regional furniture markets.  In the spring and fall of each year, a seven-day furniture market is held in High Point, 
North Carolina, which is attended by most buyers and is regarded by the industry as the international market.  We 
utilize approximately 63,000 square feet of showroom space at the High Point market to introduce new products, 
increase sales of our existing products and test ideas for future products. 
 
 We sold to approximately 3,500 customers during 2007 and approximately 6% of our sales in 2007 were to 
international customers compared to 5% in 2006.  No single customer accounted for more than 10% of our sales in 
2007.  No material part of the business is dependent upon a single customer, the loss of which would have a 
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material effect on our business.  The loss of several major customers could have a material impact on our 
business. 
 
Manufacturing and Offshore Sourcing 
 

Our manufacturing strategy combines domestic manufacturing with global sourcing. Domestic manufacturing 
operations complement our product and distribution strategy allowing us to drive continuous improvement in quality 
and customer service, while reducing inventory costs.  Our domestic manufacturing strategy includes: 

 
• Smaller, more frequent and cost-effective production runs, 
• Identification and elimination of manufacturing bottlenecks and waste, 
• Employment of statistical process control and other quality tools, 
• Use of cellular manufacturing in the production of components and 
• Improvement of our relationships with suppliers by establishing primary suppliers. 

 
In addition, a key element of our manufacturing practices is to involve all personnel, from hourly associates 

to management, in the improvement of the manufacturing processes by encouraging and responding to ideas to 
improve quality and to reduce manufacturing lead times.  Each of our manufacturing facilities is focused on 
compatible products to improve quality and lower production costs. 

 
We also integrate the sourcing of selected finished items with our domestic manufacturing operations to 

further enhance our product and distribution strategy.  We acquire selected finished items and component parts 
from a limited number of offshore suppliers who can meet our quality specifications, production efficiency and 
scheduling requirements.  Approximately 35% of our sales volume in 2007 came from products sourced offshore 
with China representing the largest volume.  We anticipate this percentage to be about the same for 2008. 
 

We operate manufacturing facilities in North Carolina and Virginia consisting of an aggregate of 
approximately three million square feet.  We consider our facilities to be generally modern, well-equipped and well-
maintained. 
 

We shipped customer orders within 15 days from the receipt of order on average during 2007.  We schedule 
production of our various styles based upon actual and anticipated orders.  To support our delivery performance, 
we maintain a higher inventory level of sourced products compared to those we manufacture.  Since we ship 
customer orders on average in 15 days, the size of our backlog is not necessarily indicative of our long-term 
operations.  Our backlog of unshipped orders was $17.5 million at December 31, 2007 and $17.6 million at 
December 31, 2006. 
 
Raw Materials 
 

The principal materials used in manufacturing our products include lumber, veneers, plywood, particle board, 
hardware, glue, finishing materials, glass products, laminates, fabrics and metals.  We use a variety of species of 
lumber, including cherry, oak, ash, poplar, pine and maple.  Our five largest raw material suppliers accounted for 
approximately 29% of our purchases in 2007.  We believe that our sources of supply for these materials are 
adequate and that we are not dependent on any one supplier. 
 
Competition 
 

We ranked 16th among the largest furniture manufacturers based on 2006 sales, according to 
Furniture/Today, a trade publication.  The furniture industry is highly competitive and includes a large number of 
foreign and domestic manufacturers, none of which dominates the market.  In addition, competition has 
significantly increased from foreign manufacturers in countries such as China and Vietnam which have lower 
production costs.  The markets in which we compete include a large number of relatively small manufacturers; 
however, certain competitors have substantially greater sales volumes and financial resources compared to us.  
Competitive factors in the upper-medium price range include style, price, quality, delivery, design, service, 
selection and durability.  We believe that our manufacturing processes, our sourcing strategy, long-standing 
customer relationships and customer responsiveness, consistent support of existing diverse product lines that are 
high quality and good value, and our experienced management are competitive advantages. 
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Associates 
 

At December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 1,800 associates.  None of our associates are 
represented by a labor union.  We consider our relationship with our associates to be good. 

 
Trademarks 
 

Our trade names represent many years of continued business, and we believe these names are well 
recognized and associated with excellent quality and styling in the furniture industry.  We own a number of 
trademarks and design patents, none of which are considered to be material. 

 
Governmental Regulations 
 

We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations in the areas of safety, health and 
environmental protection.  Compliance with these laws and regulations has not in the past had any material effect 
on our earnings, capital expenditures or competitive position.  However, the effect of such compliance in the future 
cannot be predicted.  We believe that we are in material compliance with applicable federal, state and local safety, 
health and environmental regulations. 

 
Forward-Looking Statements 
 

Certain statements made in this report are not based on historical facts, but are forward-looking statements.  
These statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “estimates,” 
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could”,  or “anticipates,” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or 
comparable terminology, or by discussions of strategy.  These statements reflect our reasonable judgment with 
respect to future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially 
from those in the forward-looking statements.  Such risks and uncertainties include the cyclical nature of the 
furniture industry, disruptions in offshore sourcing including those arising from supply or distribution disruptions or 
those arising from changes in political, economic and social conditions, as well as laws and regulations, in China or 
other countries from which we source products, international trade policies of the United States and countries from 
which we source products, business failures or loss of large customers, manufacturing realignment, competition in 
the furniture industry including competition from lower-cost foreign manufacturers, the inability to obtain sufficient 
quantities of quality raw materials in a timely manner, the inability to raise prices in response to inflation and 
increasing costs, failure to anticipate or respond to changes in consumer tastes and fashions in a timely manner, 
environmental compliance costs, and extended business interruption at manufacturing facilities.  In addition, we 
have made certain forward-looking statements with respect to payments we expect to receive under the Continued 
Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act, which are subject to the risks and uncertainties described in our discussion of 
those payments that may cause the actual payments to differ materially from those in the forward looking 
statements.  Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of this filing, and we undertake no obligation 
to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new developments or otherwise. 
 
Available Information 
 

Our principal Internet address is www.stanleyfurniture.com.  We make available free of charge on this web 
site our annual, quarterly and current reports, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably 
practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
In addition, you may request a copy of these filings (excluding exhibits) at no cost by writing, telephoning, 

faxing or e-mailing us at the following address, telephone number, fax number or e-mail address. 
 

 
Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. 
1641 Fairystone Park Highway 
Stanleytown, Virginia  24168 

Attention: Mr. Douglas I. Payne 
Telephone: 276-627-2000 

Fax: 276-629-5114 
Or e-mail your request to: Investor@Stanleyfurniture.com 
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Item 1A. Risk Factors 
 

Our results of operations and financial condition can be adversely affected by numerous risks.  You 
should carefully consider the risk factors detailed below in conjunction with the other information 
contained in this document.  Should any of these risks actually materialize, our business, financial 
condition and future prospects could be negatively impacted.  
 
We may not be able to sustain sales and earnings levels due to economic downturns. 
 
The furniture industry historically has been cyclical in nature and has fluctuated with economic cycles including the 
current downturn in the U.S. housing market.  During economic downturns, the furniture industry tends to 
experience longer periods of recession and greater declines than the general economy. We believe that the 
industry is significantly influenced by economic conditions generally and particularly by consumer behavior and 
confidence, the level of personal discretionary spending, housing activity, demographics and credit availability.  
These factors not only affect the ultimate consumer, but also impact furniture retailers, which are our primary 
customers.  As a result, a worsening of current conditions or a future economic downturn could lower our sales and 
earnings. 
 
As a result of our reliance on foreign sourcing: 
 

• Our ability to service customers could be adversely affected and result in lower sales and 
earnings. 

 
Our sourcing partners may not supply goods that meet our manufacturing, quality or safety 
specifications, in a timely manner and at an acceptable price.  We may reject goods that do not meet 
our specifications and either manufacture internally or find alternative sourcing arrangements at a 
higher cost, or may be forced to discontinue the product.  Also, delivery of goods from our foreign 
sourcing partners may be delayed for reasons not typically encountered with domestic manufacturing 
or sourcing, such as shipment delays caused by customs or labor issues.  

 
• Changes in political, economic and social conditions, as well as laws and regulations, in China 

or the other countries from which we source products could adversely affect us. 
 
Foreign sourcing is subject to political and social instability in China or the other countries where our 
sourcing partners are located.  This could make it more difficult for us to service our customers.  Also, 
significant fluctuations of foreign exchange rates against the value of the U.S. dollar could increase 
costs and decrease earnings.  In addition, an outbreak of the avian flu or similar epidemic in Asia or 
elsewhere may lower our sales and earnings by disrupting our supply chain in the countries impacted.  
 

• International trade policies of the United States and countries from which we source products 
could adversely affect us. 
 
Imposition of trade sanctions relating to imports, taxes, import duties and other charges on imports 
could increase our costs and decrease our earnings. 

 
Business failures, or the loss, of large customers could result in a decrease in our future sales and 
earnings. 
 
Although we have no customers that individually represent 10% or more of our total annual sales, the possibility of 
business failures, or the loss, of large customers could result in a decrease of our future sales and earnings.  Lost 
sales may be difficult to replace and any amounts owed to us may become uncollectible.  
 
Manufacturing realignment could result in a decrease in our earnings. 
 
We review our domestic manufacturing operations and foreign sourcing program on an ongoing basis.  Certain 
individual products or product lines may be shifted from being domestically produced to being sourced and as a 
result we may reduce our domestic capacity.  Manufacturing realignments could result in a decrease in our 
earnings. 
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We may not be able to sustain current sales and earnings due to the actions and strength of our 
competitors. 
 
The furniture industry is very competitive and fragmented.  We compete with many domestic and foreign 
manufacturers.  Competition from foreign producers has increased dramatically in the past few years, with most 
residential wood furniture sold in the United States now coming from imports.  These foreign producers typically 
have lower selling prices due to their lower operating costs.   Some competitors have greater financial resources 
than we have and often offer extensively advertised, well-recognized, branded products.  As a result, we are 
continually subject to the risk of losing market share, which may lower our sales and earnings. 
 
We may not be able to obtain sufficient quantities of quality raw materials in a timely manner, which could 
result in a decrease in our sales and earnings. 
 
Because we are dependent on outside suppliers for all of our raw material needs, we must obtain sufficient 
quantities of quality raw materials from our suppliers at acceptable prices and in a timely manner.  We have no 
long-term supply contracts with our key suppliers.  Unfavorable fluctuations in the price, quality and availability of 
these raw materials could negatively affect our ability to meet demands of our customers and could result in a 
decrease in our sales and earnings. 
 
We may not be able to maintain or to raise prices in response to inflation and increasing costs. 

 
Future market and competitive pressures may prohibit us from raising prices to offset increased raw material costs, 
freight costs and other inflationary items.  This could lower our earnings. 

 
Failure to anticipate or respond to changes in consumer tastes and fashions in a timely manner could 
result in a decrease in our sales and earnings. 
 
Residential furniture is a highly styled product and is subject to rapidly changing consumer trends and tastes.  If we 
are unable to predict or respond to changes in these trends and tastes in a timely manner, we may lose sales and 
have to sell excess inventory at reduced prices.  This could lower our sales and earnings.  
 
Future environmental costs could reduce our earnings. 
 
We are subject to federal and state environmental regulations that govern the release of pollutants into the water 
and air, the disposal and management of toxic wastes and substances and the cleanup of hazardous sites.  The 
timing and ultimate magnitude of costs for environmental compliance are difficult to predict and could reduce our 
earnings. 
 
Extended business interruption at our manufacturing facilities could result in reduced sales. 
 
Furniture manufacturing creates large amounts of highly flammable wood dust.  Additionally, we utilize other highly 
flammable materials such as varnishes and solvents in our manufacturing processes and are therefore subject to 
the risk of losses arising from explosions and fires.  Our inability to fill customer orders during an extended 
business interruption could negatively impact existing customer relationships resulting in market share decreases. 
 
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 
 

None. 
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Item 2. Properties 
 

Set forth below is certain information with respect to our principal properties.  We believe that all these 
properties are well maintained and in good condition.  All of our plants are equipped with automatic sprinkler 
systems and modern fire protection equipment, which we believe are adequate.  All facilities set forth below are 
active and operational.  Production capacity and extent of utilization of our facilities are difficult to quantify with 
certainty because maximum capacity and utilization varies periodically depending upon the product being 
manufactured, the amount of component parts and finished items outsourced and the utilization of the labor force 
at the facility.  In 2007 we operated our facilities at levels significantly below their estimated capacity.   In late 2007 
we announced the conversion of our Martinsville facility from a manufacturing to a warehousing operation.  We 
believe available capacity at our facilities together with the integration of selected imported finished items will be 
adequate to expand production to meet anticipated product requirements. 

 
    Approximate  Owned 
    Facility Size  or 
Location  Primary Use  (Square Feet)  Leased 
Stanleytown, VA  Manufacturing and Corporate Headquarters  1,721,000  Owned 
Martinsville, VA  Manufacturing/Warehouse (1)  300,000  Owned 
Lexington, NC  Manufacturing  635,000  Owned 
Robbinsville, NC  Manufacturing  562,100  Owned 
High Point, NC  Showroom  63,000  Leased 
Martinsville, VA  Warehouse  243,000  Leased 

 
(1) This facility is being converted from a manufacturing facility to a warehouse facility. 

 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 
 

In the normal course of business, we are involved in claims and lawsuits none of which currently, in our 
opinion, will have a material adverse affect on our consolidated financial statements. 

 
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 

None. 
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Executive Officers of the Registrant 
 

Our executive officers and their ages as of January 1, 2008 are as follows: 
 

Name  Age  Position 
Jeffrey R. Scheffer..................................................  52  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
Douglas I. Payne ....................................................

  
49 

  
Executive Vice President – Finance and 

    Administration and Secretary 
 
R. Glenn Prillaman .................................................

  
36 

  
Senior Vice President – Marketing and   Sales 

      
 
Dennis K. Taggart ..................................................

  
50 

  
Vice President – Human Resources  

     
 

Jeffrey R. Scheffer has been Chairman of the Board of Directors since April 2005 and Chief Executive 
Officer since December 2002.  Mr. Scheffer has been President since April 2001.  He also served as Chief 
Operating Officer from April 2001 to December 2002.  Prior to his employment with us, Mr. Scheffer served as 
President of American Drew, a furniture manufacturer, for five years. 

 
Douglas I. Payne has been Executive Vice President – Finance and Administration since April 2001.  Mr. 

Payne previously held the position of Senior Vice President – Finance and Administration since December 1996.  
He was our Vice President of Finance and Treasurer from September 1993 to December 1996.  Prior to that time, 
Mr. Payne held various financial management positions since his employment by us in 1983.  Mr. Payne has been 
our Secretary since 1988. 
 

R. Glenn Prillaman has been Senior Vice President – Marketing and Sales since September 2006. Mr. 
Prillaman previously held the position of Senior Vice President – Marketing/Sales – Young America® since August 
2003.  He was our Vice President – Product Manager from January 2002 to August 2003.  Mr. Prillaman held 
various management positions in product development for Young America® from June 1999 to January 2002.  Mr. 
Prillaman is the son of Albert L. Prillaman who serves as lead director on the Board of Directors. 

 
Dennis K. Taggart has been Vice President of Human Resources since his employment with us in January 

2005. He has been an executive officer of the company since April 2006. Prior to his employment with us, Mr. 
Taggart served as Director of Human Resources for Whirlpool Corporation, an appliance manufacturer, since 
2000. Prior to that, he held various human resource positions with Hillenbrand Industries, a healthcare and funeral 
services company, since 1985.  

 
PART II 

 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer 
 Purchases of Equity Securities 
 

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol STLY.  The table 
below sets forth the high and low sales prices per share, for the periods indicated, as reported by Nasdaq. 
  

  2007    2006 
    Dividends   Dividends 
  High Low Paid High Low Paid 
First Quarter ........................  $22.16 $19.38 $.10  $29.96 $22.77   $.08 
Second Quarter ...................   23.74  20.20 .10 29.58 20.00   .08 
Third Quarter .......................   22.25  15.89 .10 25.57 20.54   .08 
Fourth Quarter.....................   17.38  10.39 .10 24.06 19.11   .08 

 
As of January 25, 2008, we have approximately 2,900 beneficial stockholders.  Our dividend policy is subject 

to review and revision by the Board of Directors and any future payments will depend upon our financial condition, 
our capital requirements and earnings, as well as other factors the Board of Directors may deem relevant. 
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Performance Graph 
 

The following graph compares cumulative total stockholder return for the Company with a broad performance 
indicator, the Nasdaq Non-Financial Stock index (an industry index) and a Peer group index for the period from 
December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2007. 

 

 Comparison of Cumulative Total Return(1)
Stanley Furniture Company, Inc., 

Nasdaq Non-Financial Stock Index and Peer Group Index
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Peer Group Index (2)

Nasdaq Non-Financial Stock Index (3)

 
(1) The graph shows the cumulative total return on $100 invested at the market close on December 31, 2002, the last trading day in 2002, in 

Common Stock or the specified index, including reinvestments of dividends. 
(2) Peer Group Index as prepared by Hemscott, Inc. consists of SIC Code 2511 Wood Household Furniture Index and SIC code 2512 Wood 

Household Furniture, Upholstered. At January 2, 2008, Hemscott reported that these two indexes consisted of Bassett Furniture Industries, 
Inc., Chromcraft Revington, Inc., Ethan Allen Interiors, Inc., Flexsteel Industries, Inc., Furniture Brands International, Hooker Furniture 
Corp., La-Z-Boy, Inc. and Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.   

(3) Nasdaq Non-Financial Stock Index prepared for The Nasdaq Stock Market by the Center for Research in Securities Prices at the 
University of Chicago. 

 
 
 Equity Compensation Plan Information 
 

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2007: 
 
 Number of shares  Weighted-average Number of shares 
 to be issued upon    exercise price  remaining available  
 exercise of  of outstanding  for future issuance 
 outstanding options, options, warrants under equity 
 warrants and rights and rights   compensation plans 
Equity compensation plans    
 approved by stockholders   840,488 $16.15 29,016 
Equity compensation plans    
 not approved by stockholders(1)    200,000   13.94   
Total 1,040,488 $15.73 29,016 
    

 

(1)Represents a one time option grant to Jeffrey R. Scheffer, in connection with his employment as our President and  
   Chief Operating Officer in April 2001. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 
 
 
  Years Ended December 31,   
     2007  2006 2005  2004  2003 
  (in thousands, except per share data) 
Income Statement Data:     
Net sales ................................................. $282,847 $307,547 $333,646 $305,815 $265,263
Cost of sales (1) .....................................   235,937  242,679 251,937 230,174 203,410
 Gross profit ............................................ 46,910 64,868 81,709 75,641 61,853
Selling, general and administrative  
 expenses ............................................... 39,573    42,139     44,267      40,953      35,637 
Pension plan termination charge (2) ...... (6,605)  
  Operating income.................................. 732 22,729 37,442 34,688 26,216
Income from Continued Dumping and         
 Subsidy Offset Act, net......................... 10,429

 
4,419

 

Other income, net.................................... 265 297 288 188 203
Interest expense, net...............................       2,679      1,710      1,825      2,343      2,748
 Income before income taxes ................. 8,747 25,735 35,905 32,533 23,671
Income taxes ...........................................      2,845      8,954    12,674    11,744      8,521
 Net income ............................................ $   5,902 $ 16,781 $ 23,231 $ 20,789 $ 15,150
  
Basic Earnings Per Share:  (3)  
Net income .............................................. $       .56 $     1.44 $     1.82 $     1.65 $     1.20
Weighted average shares .......................    10,478    11,649    12,766    12,574    12,651
  
Diluted Earnings Per Share: (3)  
Net income .............................................. $       .55 $     1.41 $     1.77 $     1.59 $     1.17
Weighted average shares .......................    10,677    11,924    13,154    13,099    12,923
  
Cash dividends paid per share................ $       .40 $       .32 $       .24 $       .20 $       .10
  
Balance Sheet and Other Data:  
Cash ........................................................ $ 31,648 $   6,269 $ 12,556 $   7,632 $   2,509
Inventories............................................... 58,086 59,364 69,961 73,658 54,638
Working capital ........................................ 91,852 72,036 91,200 88,567 64,455
Total assets ............................................. 173,731 162,678 190,488 188,888 164,203
Long-term debt including  
 current maturities................................... 30,714 8,571 11,428 15,685 22,700
Stockholders’ equity ................................ 102,851 109,647 132,749 127,265 102,558
Capital expenditures................................ $   3,951 $   4,196  $   4,986 $   1,718 $   1,243
Stock repurchases:  
 Shares (3) .............................................. 639 1,423 1,057  1,132
 Total cost ............................................... $ 13,557 $ 33,576 $ 22,993  $ 14,788
 
 

(1) Included in cost of sales in 2007 is $3.6 million pretax ($2.4 million after tax), or $.23 per diluted share, for the 
conversion of one of our manufacturing facilities to a warehouse operation. 

(2) We terminated our defined benefit pension plan in 2007, resulting in a charge to earnings of $6.6 million pretax (4.5 
million after tax), or $.42 per diluted share. 

(3) Amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split, distributed in the form of a stock 
dividend, on June 6, 2005. 
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation 
 

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Selected Financial Data and the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Notes. 
 
Overview 
 

Over the past few years the residential wood furniture industry has experienced a surge in low cost imported 
products, primarily from China.  Imports have grown dramatically in the past few years and now account for most 
residential wood furniture sold in the United States. 

 
In response to this trend we developed a blended strategy of combining our domestic manufacturing 

capabilities with an offshore sourcing program and have continued to realign our manufacturing capacity.  We 
incorporate selected imported finished items in our product line to lower costs, provide design flexibility and offer a 
better value to our customers.  Sourced products were approximately 35% of our sales in 2007 compared to 34% 
in 2006.  We anticipate this percentage will remain about the same for 2008. 

 
In 2005, we began reinvigorating our continuous improvement efforts using lean business principles to 

improve processes and efficiencies.  While these renewed efforts have shown positive results, it is difficult to 
project the speed and the extent to which we will be able to lower costs, improve quality and reduce inventories. 

 
In response to the lower demand caused by industry-wide slowdown that began in late 2005, we have 

lowered our headcount by approximately 700, or 28%, over the past two years and we are currently in the process 
of converting our Martinsville facility from a manufacturing to a warehouse operation.  

 
We will continue to evaluate our manufacturing capacity needs considering offshore sourcing opportunities, 

current and anticipated demand for our products, overall market conditions and other factors we consider relevant. 
Should further capacity reductions become necessary, this could cause asset impairment or other restructuring 
charges in the future. 
 
Results of Operations 
 

The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of certain items included in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income: 
 

  For the Years Ended 
   December 31,  

  2007  2006  2005 
Net sales.................................................................... 100.0%     100.0%     100.0% 
Cost of sales ..............................................................   83.4   78.9   75.5 
 Gross profit .............................................................. 16.6 21.1 24.5 
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...........  14.0  13.7  13.3 
Pension plan termination charge...............................    2.3           
 Operating income .................................................... .3 7.4 11.2    
Income from Continued Dumping and Subsidy  
  Offset Act, net .......................................................... 

 
3.7 

 
1.4 

 

Other income, net ...................................................... .1 .1           .1 
Interest expense, net .................................................         1.0           .5           .5 
 Income before income taxes.................................... 3.1 8.4 10.8 
Income taxes .............................................................         1.0         2.9         3.8 
 Net income...............................................................    2.1%    5.5%    7.0% 
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2007 Compared to 2006 
 

Net sales decreased $24.7 million, or 8.0%, in 2007 compared to 2006.  The decrease was due primarily to 
lower unit volume, resulting from continued weakness in demand, which we believe is due to an industry wide slow 
down.  
 

Gross profit for 2007 decreased to 16.6% from 21.1% in 2006.  Lower margins resulted from lower sales and 
production levels, raw material inflation and increased compensation costs.  The lower sales and production levels 
led to lower margins due to the under absorption of factory overhead costs.  Also, a restructuring charge of $3.6 
million for the conversion of one of our manufacturing facilities into a warehouse operation contributed to the lower 
gross profit margin in 2007.  We expect to record an additional charge in 2008 of about $1.0 million with most of the 
impact occurring in the first half of the year. 
 

Selling, general and administrative expenditures as a percentage of net sales were 14.0% in 2007 compared 
to 13.7% in 2006.  The higher percentage for 2007 is due primarily to lower sales.  Selling, general and 
administrative expenses decreased $2.6 million during 2007 compared to 2006, due to lower selling expenses 
resulting from decreased sales and cost control initiatives implemented in response to lower sales. 

 
Final distribution of assets and termination of our defined benefit pension plan occurred during 2007, resulting 

in a settlement charge to earnings of $6.6 million and a final cash contribution of $1.6 million. 
 

As a result of the above, operating income as a percentage of net sales was .3% for 2007, compared to 7.4% 
for 2006. 
 

We recorded income of $10.4 million, net of legal expenses, from the receipt of funds under the Continued 
Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act of 2000 (CDSOA) and related settlement payments in connection with the case 
involving wooden bedroom furniture imported from China.  CDSOA funds recorded in 2006 were 4.4 million, net of 
legal expenses and tariff adjustments. 
 

Interest expense for 2007 compared to 2006 increased $1.0 million due primarily to the $25 million private 
note placement funded in 2007. 

 
The effective tax rate for 2007 is 32.5%, compared to 34.8%, for 2006.  The decrease in the effective tax rate 

is primarily due to lower taxable income. The effective tax rate for 2008 is expected to be in the range of 32.0% to 
32.5%.  

 
2006 Compared to 2005 
 

Net sales decreased $26.1 million, or 7.8%, in 2006 compared to 2005.  The decrease was due primarily to 
lower unit volume, resulting from continued weakness in demand, which we believed was due to current industry 
conditions, partially offset by higher average selling prices.  
 

Gross profit margin for 2006 decreased to 21.1% from 24.5% in 2005.  Lower margins resulted from lower 
sales, decreased production levels, and higher raw material, compensation and energy costs.  As a result of 
improving processes and reducing lead times, production levels decreased more sharply than the sales decline. 
The lower sales and production levels led to lower margins due to the under absorption of factory overhead costs. 
 

Selling, general and administrative expenditures as a percentage of net sales was 13.7% in 2006 compared 
to 13.3% in 2005.  The higher percentage for 2006 was due primarily to lower sales. Selling, general and 
administrative expenses decreased $2.1 million during 2006 compared to 2005, due to lower selling expenses 
resulting from decreased sales and lower performance based compensation expense due to lower earnings. These 
lower costs were partially offset by increased bad debt expense and consulting fees related to our continuous 
improvement efforts. 
 

As a result of the above, operating income as a percentage of net sales was 7.4% for 2006, compared to 
11.2% for 2005. 
 

We recorded income of $4.4 million, net of legal expenses and tariff adjustments in 2006, from the receipt of 
funds under the Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act of 2000 (CDSOA) in connection with the case involving 
wooden bedroom furniture imported from China.  The CDSOA provides for the distribution of monies collected by 
the U.S. Customs and Border Protection from antidumping cases to qualified domestic producers, in cases where 
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domestic producers continue to invest in their technology, equipment, and people.  CDSOA funds recorded in 2005 
were insignificant. 

 
Interest expense for 2006 decreased primarily due to lower average debt levels.   

 
The effective tax rate for 2006 was 34.8%, compared to 35.3% for 2005.  The decrease in the effective tax 

rate was primarily due to lower taxable income.  
 
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 

Sources of liquidity include cash on hand, cash from operations and amounts available under a $25.0 million 
credit facility that matures in August 2009.  These sources have been adequate for day-to-day expenditures, debt 
payments, purchases of our stock, capital expenditures and payment of cash dividends to stockholders.  In April 
2007, we received $25 million in proceeds from a private note placement.  The note bears interest at 6.73% per 
annum and is payable in seven equal annual principal payments starting in May 2011 with the final payment due in 
May 2017.  We expect these sources of liquidity to continue to be adequate for the future. 
 

Working capital, excluding cash and current maturities of long-term debt, decreased $7.0 million during 2007 
to $61.6 million from $68.6 million in 2006.  The decrease was primarily due to lower accounts receivable and 
inventories, reflecting lower sales. 
 

We currently have $19.0 million available under our Board of Directors authorization to repurchase shares of 
our common stock  Consequently, we may, from time to time, either directly or through agents, repurchase our 
common stock in the open market, through negotiated purchases or otherwise, at prices and on terms satisfactory 
to us.  Depending on market prices and other relevant conditions, such purchases may be discontinued at any time. 
 

Cash generated from operations was $23.0 million in 2007 compared to $35.3 million in 2006 and $32.8 
million in 2005.  The decrease in 2007 was primarily due to lower cash received from customers due to lower sales 
and was partially offset by lower tax payments due to lower taxable earnings.  The increase in cash from operations 
for 2006 compared to 2005 was due to lower cash paid to suppliers and employees due to lower production levels 
which was partially offset by lower cash collections from customers due to lower sales.  
 

Net cash used by investing activities was $4.0 million in 2007 compared to $4.2 million in 2006 and $5.0 
million in 2005, and consisted primarily of normal capital expenditures.  Capital expenditures in 2008 are anticipated 
to be in the range of $3.0 million to $4.0 million. 
 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $6.3 million in 2007, compared to cash used of $37.4 million 
and $22.9 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. In 2007, a portion of the proceeds from our $25 million private 
note placement and cash from operations provided funds for the purchase and retirement of our common stock, 
payment of cash dividends and scheduled debt payments.  In 2006 and 2005, cash from operations was used to 
purchase and retire common stock, pay cash dividends and make scheduled debt payments.  Over the last three 
years $70.1 million was used to purchase 3.1 million shares of our common stock in the open market at an average 
price of $22.47. 
 

At December 31, 2007, long-term debt including current maturities was $30.7 million.  Debt service 
requirements are $1.4 million in each of 2008, 2009, and 2010, $5.0 million in 2011, and $3.6 million in 2012.  As of 
December 31, 2007, approximately $25.0 million of borrowings were available under a revolving credit facility and 
cash on hand was $31.6 million. 



      15

The following table sets forth our contractual cash obligations and other commercial commitments at 
December 31, 2007 (in thousands): 

 
   Payment due or commitment expiration 
   Less Than  Over 
 Total 1 year 1-3 years  3-5 years  5 years
Contractual cash obligations:      
 Long-term debt $30,714 $1,428 $2,857 $  8,571 $17,857
 Postretirement benefits other than pensions(1) 2,784 295 577 551 1,362
 Fixed interest payment on long-term debt 11,720 2,030 3,761 2,934 2,995
 Operating leases     1,356      743      613     
 Total contractual cash obligations $46,574 $4,496 $7,808 $12,056 $22,214
Other commercial commitments:  
 Letters of credit $  1,610 $1,610  
 

(1) The 1983 Group Annuity Mortality tables were used in estimating future benefit payments, and the health care cost 
trend rate for determining payments is 8.0% for 2007 and gradually declines to 5.5% in 2010 where it is assumed to 
remain constant for the remaining years. 

 
Not included in the above table is unrecognized tax benefits of $899,000. 
 
 Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act (CDSOA) 
 

The CDSOA provides for distribution of monies collected by U.S. Customs and Border Protection from 
antidumping cases to qualified domestic producers where the domestic producers have continued to invest in their 
technology, equipment and people.  We recorded income of $10.4 million and $4.4 million in 2007 and 2006, 
respectively, net of legal expenses, from CDSOA payments and related settlement payments. 

 
In February 2006, U.S. legislation was enacted that ends CDSOA distributions for imports covered by 

antidumping duty orders entering the U.S. after September 30, 2007.  Instead, these antidumping duties for 
merchandise entering the U.S. after September 30, 2007 will remain with the U.S. Treasury. 

 
According to U.S. Customs and Border Protection, as of October 1, 2007, approximately $178 million in duties 

had been secured by cash deposits and bonds on unliquidated entries, and this amount is potentially available for 
distribution under CDSOA to eligible domestic manufacturers in connection with the case involving wooden 
bedroom furniture imported from China.  In addition, approximately $41 million of funds available for distribution 
were set aside by the government over the past two years for a group of domestic producers that have requested 
CDSOA funds and are not eligible to receive funds based on the CDSOA and the government’s historical 
administration of the CDSOA.  The government set aside these CDSOA funds in connection with two lower court 
cases decided against the government on constitutional grounds that have been appealed.  The resolution of these 
legal appeals will have a significant impact on the amount of additional CDSOA funds we receive. 

 
There are a number of factors that can affect how much additional CDSOA funds we receive. These factors 

include: 
 

• the annual administrative review process which can retroactively increase or decrease the actual 
duties owed on entries secured by cash deposits and bonds,  

• our percentage allocation which is based on our qualifying expenditures in relation to the qualifying 
expenditures of other eligible domestic producers requesting distribution for the relevant time 
periods under CDSOA,  

• the ultimate resolution of the legal appeals discussed above, and  
• other administrative and legal challenges that may be instituted. 

 
 Assuming our percentage allocation in future years is the same as it was for the 2007 payment (approximately 
25% of the funds distributed), that the amount of $178 million collected by the government as of October 1, 2007 
does not change as a result of the annual administrative review process or otherwise, and that the government 
loses the pending appeals based on constitutional issues (reducing our percentage allocation by approximately 
50% based on the amount of funds held back for this pending litigation in 2007), we could potentially receive 
approximately $22 million in additional CDSOA funds. If the government ultimately prevails on the pending 
constitutional legal challenges and the other assumptions remain the same, we could potentially receive 
approximately $32 million more in funds, for a total of approximately $55 million in additional CDSOA funds.  Due 
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to the uncertainty of the various legal and administrative processes, we cannot provide assurances as to the 
amount of additional CDSOA funds that ultimately will be received, if any, and we cannot predict when we may 
receive any additional CDSOA funds. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
 

We have chosen accounting policies that are necessary to accurately and fairly report our operational and 
financial position.  Below are the critical accounting policies that involve the most significant judgments and 
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. 
 

Allowance for doubtful accounts – We maintain an allowance for doubtful receivables for estimated losses 
resulting from the inability of trade customers to make required payments.  We provide an allowance for specific 
customer accounts where collection is doubtful and also provide an allowance for other accounts based on 
historical collection and write-off experience.  Judgment is critical because some customers have historically 
experienced financial difficulties.  As the financial condition of these customers and the related receivable balances 
change, the level of such allowances will be reevaluated. 
 

Inventory valuation – Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market.  Cost for all inventories is 
determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.  We evaluate our inventory to determine excess or slow 
moving items based on current order activity and projections of future demand.  For those items identified, we 
estimate our market value or net sales value based on current trends.  Those items having a net sales value less 
than cost are written down to their net sales value.  This process recognizes projected inventory losses when they 
become evident rather than at the time they are sold. 
 

Long-lived assets – Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for possible impairment when events indicate 
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Assumptions and estimates used in the evaluation of 
impairment may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets, which could result in impairment charges in future 
periods.  Depreciation policy reflects judgments on the estimated useful lives of assets. 
 

Tax contingencies – Tax contingencies are recorded to address potential exposures involving tax positions 
we have taken that could be challenged by taxing authorities.  These potential exposures result from the varying 
applications of statutes, rules, regulations and interpretations.  Our tax contingencies contain assumptions based 
on past experiences and judgments about potential actions by taxing jurisdictions.  The ultimate resolution of these 
matters may be greater or less than the amount that we have provided. 
 

Self-Insurance – We are self-insured for certain claims related to medical insurance and workers’ 
compensation.  We maintain stop loss coverage with third party insurers to limit our total exposure.  The self-
insurance liability represents an estimate of the ultimate cost of claims incurred and unpaid as of the balance sheet 
date.  The estimated liability is established based upon analysis of historical data to ensure that the liability is 
appropriate.  If actual claims differ from our estimates, our financial results could be impacted. 

 
Tariffs imposed on wooden bedroom furniture imported from China – Tariff expense is based on the 

most current rates published by the Department of Commerce.  These rates are potentially subject to an 
administrative review process starting approximately one year after the publication date.  The final amounts will 
depend on whether administrative reviews are performed and the outcome of those reviews, if any, on the vendors 
we purchase from.  Consequently, any significant adjustments to these tariff rates could have a material impact on 
our financial results. 

 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

 
We do not have transactions or relationships with “special purpose” entities, and we do not have any off 

balance sheet financing other than normal operating leases primarily for showroom, warehousing space and 
certain technology equipment. 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”).  This standard clarifies the principle 
that fair value should be based on the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or 
liability.  Additionally, it establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those 
assumptions.  We have not yet determined the impact that the implementation of SFAS No. 157 will have on our 
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results of operations or financial condition.  SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007. 
 
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 
 
 Our obligation under the revolving credit facility bears interest at a variable rate; therefore, changes in 
prevailing interest rates impact our borrowing costs.  A one-percentage point fluctuation in market interest rates 
would not have had a material impact on earnings in 2007.  None of our foreign sales or purchases are 
denominated in foreign currency and we do not have any foreign currency hedging transactions.  While our foreign 
purchases are denominated in U.S. dollars, a relative decline in the value of the U.S. dollar could result in an 
increase in the cost of products obtained from offshore sourcing and reduce our earnings, unless we are able to 
increase our prices for these items to reflect any such increased cost. 

 
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
 
 The consolidated financial statements and schedule listed in items 15(a) (1) and (a) (2) hereof are 
incorporated herein by reference and are filed as part of this report. 

 
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
 
 None. 

 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 
 

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures   
 

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer 
and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term 
is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
Exchange Act).  Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this 
annual report. 

 
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 

reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f).  Under the supervision and with the participation 
of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal 
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission.  Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework, our 
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007. 
 
 Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
 There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
Item 9B. Other Information 
 
 None. 
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PART III 
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance   
 

Information related to our directors is set forth under the caption “Election of Directors” of our proxy 
statement (the “2008 Proxy Statement”) for our annual meeting of shareholders scheduled for April 15, 2008.  Such 
information is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Information relating to compliance with section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is set forth under the caption 

“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of our 2008 Proxy Statement and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
Information relating to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors determinations concerning whether a 

member of the Audit Committee of the Board is a “financial expert” as that term is defined under Item 407(d) (5) of 
Regulation S-K is set forth under the caption “Board and Board Committee Information” of our 2008 Proxy 
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Information concerning our executive officers is included in Part I of this report under the caption “Executive 

Officers of the Registrant.” 
 
We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our associates, including the principal executive officer, 

principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or person performing similar functions.  Our code 
of ethics is posted on our website at www.stanleyfurniture.com.  Amendments to and waivers from our code of 
ethics will be posted to our website when permitted by applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules and regulations. 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation 
 

Information relating to our executive compensation is set forth under the captions “Compensation of 
Executive Officers,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Committee 
Report” of our 2008 Proxy Statement.  Such information is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 
 

Our information relating to this item is set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters” of our 2008 Proxy Statement.  Such information is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Information concerning our equity compensation plan is included in Part II of this report under the caption 

“Equity Compensation Plan Information.” 
 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 
 

Our information relating to this item is set forth under the caption “Compensation of Executive Officers – 
Employment Agreements and Related Transactions” and “Board and Board Committee Information” of our 2008 
Proxy Statement.  Such information is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 
 

Our information relating to this item is set forth under the caption “Independent Registered Public 
Accountants” of our 2008 Proxy Statement.  Such information is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV 
 

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 
 
(a) Documents filed as a part of this Report: 
 

(1) The following consolidated financial statements are included in this report on Form 10-K: 
  
 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 
 Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 
 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period 

ended December 31, 2007 
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 
 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
  

(2) Financial Statement Schedule: 
  
 Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for each of the three years in the period ended December 

31, 2007 
  
(b) Exhibits: 
  
3.1 The Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the 

Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended July 2, 2005). 
  
3.2 By-laws of the Registrant as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K 

(Commission File No. 0-14938) filed December 7, 2007). 
  
4.1 The Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Registrant as currently in effect (incorporated by 

reference to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 hereto). 
  
4.2 Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement dated as of January 26, 2007, among 

the Registrant, The Prudential Insurance Company of America, the other purchasers named therein and 
the affiliates of Prudential who became purchasers as defined therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (Commission File No 0-14938) filed February 1, 2007). 

  
4.3 Amendment to Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreements dated as of October 

12, 2007, among the Registrant, The Prudential Insurance Company of America (“Prudential”), Hartford 
Life Insurance Company, Medica Health Plans, Pruco Life Insurance Company of New Jersey, Prudential 
Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company, Mutual of Omaha Insurance Company. (incorporated by 
Reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No 0-17938) for the quarter 
ended September 29, 2007). 

  
4.4 Certain instruments with respect to long-term debt of the Registrant and it’s consolidated subsidiaries are 

not filed herewith pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K since the total amount of securities 
authorized under each such instrument does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Registrant and its 
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the 
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request. 

 
10.1 Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc., as restated effective January 1, 1993 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for 
the year ended December 31, 1993).(2) 

  
10.2 First Amendment to Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc., effective 

December 31, 1995, adopted December 15, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the 
Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1995).(2) 

      
(2) Management contract or compensatory plan 
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10.3 Stanley Interiors Corporation Deferred Compensation Capital Enhancement Plan, effective January 1, 
1986, as amended and restated effective August 1, 1987 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to 
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File No. 0-14938), No. 33-7300).(2) 

  
10.4 1994 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K 

(Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 1994).(2) 
  
10.5 Employment Agreement dated as of June 1, 1996, between Douglas I. Payne and the Registrant 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) 
for the quarter ended June 30, 1996).(2) 

  
10.6 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Proxy 

Statement (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the special meeting of stockholders held on August 24, 
2000).(2) 

  
10.7 Amendment No. 1 to The Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. 1994 Stock Option Plan dated as of July 1, 

2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-
14938) for the quarter ended September 30, 2000).(2) 

  
10.8 Employment Agreement made as of April 9, 2001 between Jeffrey R. Scheffer and the Registrant 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) 
for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).(2) 

  
10.9 Option Agreement, dated April 30, 2001, between the Registrant and Jeffrey R. Scheffer (incorporated by 

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter 
ended September 29, 2001).(2) 

 
10.10 Second Amendment to Supplemental Retirement Plan of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. effective 

January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission 
File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 2002).(2) 

  
10.11 First Amendment, dated March 1, 2003, to the Employment Agreement, dated April 9, 2001, between the 

Registrant and Jeffrey R. Scheffer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-
Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended March 29, 2003).(2) 

  
10. 12 Credit Agreement, dated August 29, 2003, between the Registrant and SouthTrust Bank (incorporated by 

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter 
ended September 27, 2003). 

  
10.13 First Amendment, dated April 23, 2004, to the revolving credit facility dated August 29, 2003, between the 

registrant and SouthTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q 
(Commission File No. 0-14938) for the quarter ended June 26, 2004). 

  
10.14 2005 Incentive Compensation Award, dated as of December 15, 2004, from the Registrant to Jeffrey R. 

Scheffer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 
0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 2004).(2) 

 
10.15 2005 Incentive Compensation Award, dated as of December 15, 2004, from the Registrant to Douglas I. 

Payne (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-
14938) for the year ended December 31, 2004). (2) 

  
10.16 Form of Stock Option Award under 2000 Incentive Plan (ISO) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 

to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 2004). 
(2) 

  
10.17 Form of Stock Option Award under 2000 Incentive Plan (ISO/NSO) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

10.24 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 
2004). (2) 

 
      
(2) Management contract or compensatory plan 
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10.18 Form of Stock Option Award under 2000 Incentive Plan (Directors) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.25 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K (Commission File No. 0-14938) for the year ended December 31, 
2004). (2) 

  
10.19 Second Amendment dated June 15, 2005, to the revolving credit facility dated August 29, 2003, between 

the Registrant and Wachovia Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (Commission File No. 0-14938) filed on June 16, 2005). 

  
10.20 Non-Competition Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2005, between the Registrant and Albert L. 

Prillaman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K (Commission File No. 0-
14938) filed on December 19, 2005). (2) 

  
10.21 Third Amendment, dated July 14, 2006, to the revolving credit facility dated August 29, 2003, between 

the Registrant and Wachovia Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-
K (Commission File No 0-14938) filed July 18, 2006). 

  
10.22 Fourth Amendment dated July 13, 2007, to the Revolving Credit Facility dated August 29, 2003, between 

the Registrant and Wachovia Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 
10-9 (Commission File No 0-14938) for the quarter ended June 30, 2007. 

  
21 List of Subsidiaries(1) 
  
23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP(1) 
  
31.1 Certification by Jeffrey R. Scheffer, our Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (1) 
  
31.2 Certification by Douglas I. Payne, our Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (1) 
  
32.1 Certification by Jeffrey R. Scheffer, our Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(1) 
  
32.2 Certification by Douglas I. Payne, our Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as 

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(1) 
  
      
(1) Filed Herewith 
(2) Management contract or compensatory plan 
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SIGNATURES 
 

 Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
  STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
   
February 4, 2008  By: /s/Jeffrey R. Scheffer 
   Jeffrey R. Scheffer 
   Chairman 
   President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
 Signature    Title  Date 
     
/s/Jeffrey R. Scheffer 
(Jeffrey R. Scheffer) 

 Chairman and President and Chief  
 Executive Officer 
 (Principal Executive Officer) 

 February 4, 2008 

     
/s/Douglas I. Payne 
(Douglas I. Payne) 

 Executive Vice President – Finance  
 and Administration and  
 Secretary (Principal Financial  
 and Accounting Officer) 

 February 4, 2008 

     
/s/Robert G. Culp, III 
(Robert G. Culp, III) 

 Director  February 4, 2008 

     
/s/Michael P. Haley 
(Michael P. Haley) 

 Director  February 4, 2008 

     
/s/Thomas L. Millner 
(Thomas L. Millner) 

 Director  February 4, 2008 

     
/s/T. Scott McIlhenny, Jr. 
(T. Scott McIlhenny, Jr.) 

 Director  February 4, 2008 

     
/s/Albert L. Prillaman 
(Albert L. Prillaman) 

 Director  February 4, 2008 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc.: 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 
2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  In 
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial 
statements.  Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The Company's 
management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A.  
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on 
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects.  Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  Our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
 
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
As discussed in Notes 4, 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which 
it accounts for uncertain tax positions effective January 1, 2007, share-based compensation effective January 1, 2006 
and defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans effective December 31, 2006.   
 
   
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Richmond, Virginia 
January 28, 2008 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in thousands, except share data) 
 
          
 

   December 31,  
  2007   2006 
ASSETS     
Current assets:     
 Cash........................................................................................   $  31,648  $    6,269 
 Accounts receivable, less allowances of $1,482 and $1,554 .   25,393  32,260 
 Inventories:     
 Finished goods......................................................................   46,250  45,172 
 Work-in-process....................................................................   4,432  5,183 
 Raw materials .......................................................................         7,404        9,009 
 Total inventories .................................................................   58,086  59,364 
     
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................................   1,767  2,085 
Deferred income taxes ................................................................         3,381        3,928 
 Total current assets ................................................................   120,275  103,906 
     
Property, plant and equipment, net .............................................   43,898  49,159 
Goodwill.......................................................................................   9,072  9,072 
Other assets ................................................................................            486           541 
 Total assets.............................................................................   $173,731  $162,678 
     
LIABILITIES     
Current liabilities:     
 Current maturities of long-term debt .......................................   $    1,428  $    2,857 
 Accounts payable....................................................................   16,106  17,789 
 Accrued salaries, wages and benefits ....................................   7,108  9,868 
 Other accrued expenses.........................................................         3,781        1,356 
 Total current liabilities ...........................................................   28,423  31,870 
     
Long-term debt, exclusive of current maturities ..........................   29,286  5,714 
Deferred income taxes ................................................................   4,824  7,422 
Other long-term liabilities.............................................................         8,347        8,025 
 Total liabilities .......................................................................       70,880      53,031 
     
Commitments and Contingencies     
     
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY     
Common stock, $0.02 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized,     
 10,332,179 shares issued and outstanding............................   207  219 
Capital in excess of par value .....................................................   591  59 
Retained earnings .......................................................................   102,999  114,189 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .....................................           (946)       (4,820)
 Total stockholders’ equity .......................................................     102,851    109,647 
 Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ...............................   $173,731  $162,678 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part 
of the consolidated financial statements. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(in thousands, except per share data) 
 

           
For the Years Ended 

 December 31,   
 2007  2006  2005 
Net sales.......................................................................  $282,847 $307,547  $333,646

   
Cost of sales.................................................................    235,937   242,679   251,937
   
 Gross profit .................................................................  46,910 64,868  81,709
   
Selling, general and administrative expenses..............     39,573    42,139     44,267
   
Pension plan termination charge...................................      (6,605)     
   
 Operating income .......................................................  732 22,729  37,442
   
Income from Continued Dumping and Subsidy  
 Offset Act, net ...........................................................  10,429

 
4,419 

 

Other income, net.........................................................  265 297  288
Interest income.............................................................  556 383  358
Interest expense...........................................................       3,235      2,093       2,183
   
 Income before income taxes.......................................  8,747 25,735  35,905
   
Income taxes ................................................................       2,845      8,954     12,674
   
 Net income..................................................................  $   5,902 $ 16,781  $ 23,231
   
Earnings per share:    
   
 Basic ...........................................................................  $       .56 $     1.44  $     1.82
 Diluted.........................................................................  $       .55 $     1.41  $     1.77
   
Weighted average shares outstanding:   
   
 Basic ...........................................................................     10,478    11,649     12,766
 Diluted.........................................................................     10,677    11,924     13,154
   
Cash dividends declared and paid   
 per common share......................................................  $       .40 $       .32  $       .24

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part 
of the consolidated financial statements. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

 
   Accumulated  
 Capital in  Other  

Common Stock Excess of Retained Comprehensive  
 Shares Amount     Par Value  Earnings  Loss   Total  

            
Balance at December 31, 2004 ......................... 12,830  $  257  $10,207   $116,952  $     (151)  $127,265 
             
Net income........................................................        23,231    23,231 
Minimum pension liability, net of              

 deferred income tax benefit of $17...............          (27)           (27)
Comprehensive income.....................................                23,204 
Exercise of stock options................................... 469  9  6,353       6,362 
Stock awards ..................................................... 10    244       244 
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options............     1,748       1,748 
Purchase and retirement of stock ...................... (1,057)  (21)  (18,552)   (4,420)    (22,993)
Dividends paid, $0.24 per share ........................               (3,081)           (3,081)

            
Balance at December 31, 2005 ......................... 12,252  245     132,682  (178)  132,749 
             
Net income ........................................................        16,781    16,781 
Minimum pension liability, net of deferred income 

tax benefit of $2,361 ...................................... 
         

(3,812)
 

     (3,812)
Comprehensive income.....................................                12,969 

   Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No.158,  
net of deferred income tax benefit of $514 .... 

         
(830)

 
(830)

Exercise of stock options................................... 90  2  1,109       1,111 
Stock awards ..................................................... 10    247       247 
Stock-based compensation ................................     357   (30)    327 
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options............     386       386 
Purchase and retirement of stock ...................... (1,423)  (28)  (2,040)   (31,508)    (33,576)
Dividends paid, $0.32  per share .......................               (3,736)           (3,736)

            
Balance at December 31, 2006 .......................  10,929    219       59   114,189  (4,820)  109,647 
             
Cumulative effect of adoption of FIN48……... 

   Adjusted balance, January 1, 2007 ................ 
______  
10,929 

 _____
  219

 _____ 
     59 

  _____21 
114,210 

 ______ 
(4,820)

 ______21 
109,668 

             
Net income .......................................................        5,902    5,902 
Prior service cost, net of deferred income tax 

benefit of $1………………………………… 
         

(2)
 

(2)
Actuarial loss, net of deferred income tax 

benefit of $136……………………………… 
         

(141)
 

        (141)
Comprehensive Income ………………………..            ___5,759 
Termination of defined benefit pension  

plan, net of deferred income tax benefit  
of $2,488........................................................ 

         

4,017 

 

4,017 
Exercise of stock options ............................... 43  1  531       532 
Stock-based compensation............................     534       534 
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options ......     92       92 
Purchase and retirement of stock.................. (640)  (13)  (625)   (12,919)    (13,557)
Dividends paid, $0.40  per share ....................               (4,194)          (4,194)
            
Balance at December 31, 2007 .......................  10,332  $  207  $     591   $102,999  $     (946)  $102,851 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(in thousands) 
  For the Years Ended 
   December 31, 
  2007  2006  2005 
Cash flows from operating activities:       
 Cash received from customers .............................................  $289,951  $311,726  $ 333,233 
 Cash paid to suppliers and employees .................................  (269,795)  (268,787)  (287,559)
 Cash from Continued Dumping and Subsidy  

Offset Act, net .....................................................................
  

9,986 
  

4,419 
 

 Interest paid, net ...................................................................  (2,359)  (1,651)  (1,792)
 Income taxes paid.................................................................      (4,775)     (10,383)      (11,080)
 Net cash provided by operating activities ...........................     23,008      35,324       32,802 
       
Cash flows from investing activities:     
 Capital expenditures .............................................................  (3,951)  (4,196)  (4,986)
 Other, net..............................................................................            (20)                  (33)
 Net cash used by investing activities ..................................      (3,971)       (4,196)        (5,019)
       
Cash flows from financing activities:       
 Proceeds from senior notes ..................................................  25,000    
 Purchase and retirement of common stock...........................  (13,557)  (33,576)  (22,993)
 Repayment of senior notes ...................................................  (2,857)  (2,857)  (4,257)
 Dividends paid ......................................................................  (4,194)  (3,736)  (3,081)
 Proceeds from exercise of stock options ..............................  532  1,111  6,362 
  Tax benefit from exercise of stock options............................  32  402   
 Proceeds from insurance policy loans ..................................        1,386        1,241         1,110 
 Net cash provided (used) by financing activities.................        6,342     (37,415)      (22,859)
       
Net increase (decrease) in cash .............................................  25,379  (6,287)  4,924 
Cash at beginning of year .......................................................        6,269      12,556         7,632 
       
 Cash at end of year ............................................................  $  31,648  $    6,269  $   12,556 
 
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
 
Net income.............................................................................  $   5,902  $  16,781  $   23,231 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash       
 provided by operating activities:       
 Pension plan termination charge .......................................  6,605     
 Depreciation ......................................................................  8,982  5,759  5,582 
 Amortization.......................................................................  72  78  88 
 Deferred income taxes ......................................................  (4,083)  (1,331)  (609)
    Stock-based compensation................................................  534  327   
    Tax benefit from exercise of stock options.........................  (32)  (402)   
 Other, net ..........................................................................  220  23  2 
 Changes in assets and liabilities:       
 Accounts receivable ........................................................  6,867  4,697  (921)
 Inventories .......................................................................  1,278  10,597  3,697 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets ....................  (1,142)  (600)  (1,415)
 Accounts payable ............................................................  (1,783)  1,384  349 
 Accrued salaries, wages and benefits .............................  (3,028)  (1,075)  815 
 Other accrued expenses .................................................  2,528  22  1,641 
 Other assets ....................................................................  88  379  248 
 Other long-term liabilities .................................................  _______      (1,315)              94 
 Net cash provided by operating activities ......................  $ 23,008  $ 35,324  $   32,802 
       
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       
 Non-cash financing activities:       
 Stock awards............................................................ .  $______  $      247  $        244 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part 

of the consolidated financial statements 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization and Basis of Presentation 
 The consolidated financial statements include Stanley Furniture Company, Inc. and our wholly owned 
subsidiaries.  All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated.  We are a leading designer 
and manufacturer of wood furniture exclusively targeted at the upper-medium price range of the residential market. 
 
 We operate in one business segment.  Substantially all revenues result from the sale of residential furniture 
products in the United States.  Substantially all trade accounts receivable are due from retailers in this market, which 
consists of a large number of entities with a broad geographical dispersion. 
 
 Certain amounts in prior years have been reclassified to conform with the presentation adopted in the current 
prior year. 

Revenue Recognition 
 Sales are recognized when products are shipped to customers.  Revenue includes amounts billed to customers 
for shipping.  Costs to warehouse and prepare goods for shipping to customers are expensed and recorded in selling, 
general and administrative expenses and amounted to $5.0 million, $6.0 million, and $6.6 million in 2007, 2006 and 
2005, respectively. 
 
Inventories 
 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market.  Cost for all inventories is determined using the first-in, 
first-out (FIFO) method. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method based upon the 
estimated useful lives.  Gains and losses related to dispositions and retirements are included in income.  Maintenance 
and repairs are charged to income as incurred; renewals and betterments are capitalized.  Assets are reviewed for 
possible impairment when events indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  
Assumptions and estimates used in the evaluation of impairment may affect the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment, which could result in impairment charges in future periods.  Depreciation policy reflects judgments on the 
estimated useful lives of assets. 
 
Capitalized Software Cost 
 We amortize purchased computer software costs using the straight-line method over the estimated economic 
lives of the related products. Unamortized cost at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $75,000 and 
$115,000, respectively, and is included in other assets. 
 
Income Taxes 
 Deferred income taxes are determined based on the difference between the consolidated financial statement 
and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are 
expected to reverse.  Deferred tax expense represents the change in the deferred tax asset/liability balance. Income tax 
credits are reported as a reduction of income tax expense in the year in which the credits are generated. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the 
incremental borrowing rates currently available to us for loans with similar terms and maturities.  At December 31, 
2007, the fair value is not materially different than our carrying value.  The fair value of trade receivables, trade 
payables and letters of credit approximate the carrying amount because of the short maturity of these instruments. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Earnings per Common Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the average number of common shares outstanding.  Diluted 
earnings per share reflects the increase in average common shares outstanding that would result from the assumed 
exercise of outstanding stock options, calculated using the treasury stock method. 
 
Stock Split 
 During 2005, the Board of Directors declared a two for one stock split in the form of a 100% stock dividend 
distributed on June 6, 2005. All share and per share information has been restated to reflect the stock split. 
 
Goodwill 

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142, (“SFAS 142”), “Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets,” we tested goodwill for impairment as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and determined that no 
impairment loss was necessary.  We will continue to test goodwill for impairment at least annually. 
 
Tariffs imposed on wooden bedroom furniture imported from China  
 Tariff expense is based on the most current rates published by the Department of Commerce.  These rates are 
potentially subject to an administrative review process starting approximately one year after the publication date.  
The final amounts will depend on whether administrative reviews are performed and the outcome of those reviews, if 
any, on the vendors we purchase from. 
 
Use of Estimates  
 The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.  Changes in such estimates may affect amounts 
reported in future periods. 
 
2. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

  Depreciable    
  lives   (in thousands) 
  (in years)  2007  2006 
Land and buildings ...............................................  20 to 50  $ 41,874  $ 40,887
Machinery and equipment....................................  5 to 12  80,589  79,051
Office furniture and equipment.............................  3 to 10      1,377      1,452
Construction in progress ......................................              61       2,071
 Property, plant and equipment, at cost ..............    123,901  123,461
Less accumulated depreciation ...........................       80,003     74,302
 Property, plant and equipment, net....................    $ 43,898  $ 49,159

 
3. Debt 
 

   (in thousands) 
   2007   2006 
6.73% Senior notes due through May 3, 2017..................................  $25,000  
7.43% Senior notes due through November 18, 2007......................    $1,428
6.94% Senior notes due through May 3, 2011..................................      5,714    7,143
 Total ..................................................................................................  30,714  8,571
Less current maturities .......................................................................      1,428    2,857
 Long-term debt, exclusive of current maturities ..............................  $29,286  $5,714

 
 Annual principal requirements are $1.4 million in each of 2008, 2009, and 2010, $5.0 million in 2011, and $3.6 
million in 2012. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
3. Debt (continued) 

 
 At December 31, 2007, no borrowings were outstanding under a revolving credit facility that provides for 
maximum borrowings of $25.0 million and matures in August 2009.  Interest is payable monthly at the reserve adjusted 
LIBOR plus .50% per annum (4.85% on December 31, 2007) or, at our option, prime minus 1.0% (7.25% on December 
31, 2007).  We utilize letters of credit to collateralize certain insurance policies and inventory purchases.  Outstanding 
letters of credit at December 31, 2007 were $1.6 million. 

 
 We received $25 million in proceeds from a private note placement on April 2007.   This note bears interest at 
6.73% per annum and is payable in seven equal principal payments starting in May 2011, with the final payment due in 
May 2017.  The above loan agreements require us to maintain certain financial covenants, including a limit on total debt 
and a fixed charge coverage ratio. 
 
4. Income Taxes 
 
 The provision for income taxes consists of (in thousands): 
 

  2007  2006  2005 
Current:   
 Federal ...............................................................  $ 5,730 $ 9,440  $12,198
 State...................................................................     1,072       845      1,101
 Total current .....................................................     6,802  10,285    13,299
Deferred:   
 Federal ...............................................................  (3,439) (1,158)  (543)
 State...................................................................      (517)     (174)         (82)
 Total deferred...................................................   (3,957)  (1,332)       (625)
 Income taxes .................................................  $ 2,845 $ 8,954  $12,674

 
 A reconciliation of the difference between the federal statutory income tax rate and the effective income tax 
rate follows: 
 

  2007  2006  2005 
Federal statutory rate...........................................     35.0%   35.0%  35.0%
State tax, net of federal benefit............................   4.9 3.0  2.5 
State tax credits and adjustments........................        (.8)  (.7) 
Increase in cash surrender value      
 of life insurance policies ....................................     (4.7)   (1.4)  (.9) 
Deduction for qualified domestic      
 production activities...........................................       (.8)     (.4)  (.5) 
Tax-exempt interest income ................................     (1.4)     (.5)   
Other, net .............................................................       (.5)     (.1)    (.1) 
 Effective income tax rate....................................    32.5%  34.8%  35.3%
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

4. Income Taxes (continued) 
 
 The income tax effects of temporary differences that comprise deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 
31 follow (in thousands): 
 

  2007  2006 
Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):   
 Accounts receivable................................................................  $     421  $     594
 Employee benefits...................................................................  2,872  3,226
 Other accrued expenses.........................................................           88         108
 Net current deferred tax asset ..............................................  $  3,381  $  3,928
   
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (assets):   
 Property, plant and equipment................................................  $7,225  $9,334
 Employee benefits...................................................................     (1,913)   (1,912)
  Other accrued expenses        (488)   
 Net noncurrent deferred tax liability ......................................  $  4,824  $ 7,422

 
We adopted the provision of Financial Standards Accounting Board Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for 

Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”) an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 on January 1, 2007. As a result 
of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized no material adjustment in the liability for unrecognized income tax 
benefits. 

 
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

   
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 1, 2007............  $ 1,027  
  Gross increases for tax positions of prior years ....................  7  
  Gross decreases for tax positions of prior years ...................   
  Settlements ............................................................................   
  Lapse of statute of limitations .................................................         (43)  

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31, 2007 .  $    991  
 

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of January 1, 
2007 and December 31, 2007, we had approximately $400,000 and $431,000 of accrued interest related to uncertain 
tax positions, respectively. 

 
 Total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect our effective tax rate if recognized is $899,000 as 
of December 31, 2007 and $923,000 as of January 1, 2007. The tax years 2004-2006 remain open to examination by 
major taxing jurisdictions to which we are subject. 
 
5. Stockholders’ Equity 
 
 For the three years ending December 31, 2007, we have used $70.1 million of cash to purchase 3.1 million 
shares of our common stock on the open market at an average price of $22.47.  At December 31, 2007, we have 
approximately $19.0 million available on the current Board of Directors authorization to acquire additional shares. 
 
 In addition to common stock, authorized capital includes 1,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock.  
None was outstanding during the three years ended December 31, 2007.  The Board of Directors is authorized to 
issue such stock in series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences, rights, limitations and restrictions with 
respect to any series of such shares.  Such “blank check” preferred stock may rank prior to common stock as to 
dividend rights, liquidation preferences or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may be convertible into 
shares of common stock. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
5. Stockholders’ Equity (continued) 

 
 Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated using the following share data (in thousands): 

  2007   2006  2005 
 Weighted average shares outstanding      
 for basic calculation...............................................  10,478  11,649  12,766
 Effect of stock options..............................................       199       275       388
 Weighted average shares outstanding     
 for diluted calculation……………………………….  10,677  11,924  13,154

 
6. Stock Based Compensation 
 

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), 
“Share-Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123 (R)”) using the modified-prospective-transition method.  Under this transition 
method, compensation cost in 2007 and 2006 includes options granted prior to but not vested as of December 31, 
2005, and options granted in 2006 and 2007. Therefore, results for 2005 have not been restated. 
 
 The reported net income and earnings per share for 2005 have been presented below to reflect the impact of the 
adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R) had we been required to adopt this standard in 2005. 
 

   2005
Net income as reported.....................................................................  $23,231
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined   
 under fair value based method for all awards, net of related   
 tax effects.......................................................................................   628
Pro forma net income........................................................................  $22,603
  
Earnings per share:  
 Basic – as reported ........................................................................  $    1.82
 Basic – pro forma...........................................................................  $    1.77
 
 Diluted – as reported......................................................................

  
$    1.77

 Diluted – pro forma ........................................................................  $    1.72
 
 As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $1.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to 
unvested share-based compensation awards granted.  That cost is expected to be recognized over the next three to 
four years. 
 
 Our stock option plans provide for the granting of stock options and stock awards up to an aggregate of 
5,000,000 shares of common stock to employees and directors at prices equal to the market value of the stock on the 
dates the options were granted.  The options granted have a term of 10 years from the grant date and granted options 
for employees vest ratably over a four to five year period.  The fair value of each option is amortized into compensation 
expense on a straight-line basis between the grant date for the option and each vesting date.  We have estimated the 
fair value of all stock option awards as of the date of the grant by applying the Black-Scholes pricing valuation model.  
The application of this valuation model involves assumptions that are judgmental and sensitive in the determination of 
compensation expense.  The weighted average for key assumptions used in determining the fair value of options 
granted during 2007 follows: 
 

Expected price volatility .......................................   35.55% 
Risk-free interest rate ..........................................   3.47% 
Weighted average expected life in years ............   5.45 
Dividend yield ......................................................   3.51% 
Forfeiture rate ......................................................     6.69% 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
6. Stock Based Compensation (continued) 
 
 Historical information was the primary basis for the selection of the expected volatility, expected dividend yield, 
forfeiture rate and the expected lives of the options.  The risk-free interest rate was selected based upon yields of  
U.S. Treasury issues with a term equal to the expected life of the option being valued. 
 
 Stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 2007, follows: 

  

Number 
of shares 

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term  
(in years) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value 

(in 
thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 ..............  1,217,400 $13.45 5.8  
 Exercised.....................................................  (469,000) 13.57   
 Granted........................................................     106,728 24.09   
     
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 ..............  855,128 14.71 5.7  
 Lapsed.........................................................  (25,000) 18.05   
 Exercised.....................................................  (90,000) 12.35   
 Granted........................................................     185,275 23.65   
     
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 ..............     925,403 16.64 5.8  
 Lapsed ........................................................  (30,000) 24.04   
 Exercised....................................................  (42,900) 12.41   
 Granted.......................................................     187,985 11.79   
     
 Outstanding at December 31, 2007..........  1,040,488 $15.73 4.4 $214 
     
 Exercisable at December 31, 2007...........     719,888 $15.24 4.1 $    6 
      
    At December 31, 2007, 29,016 shares were available for future grants and awards. 

 
 The average fair market value of options granted, and cash proceeds, tax benefits and intrinsic value related to 
total stock options exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 
 

  2007  2006    2005 
Average fair market value of options granted 
(per share) ............................................................ $  3.25

 
$  9.89 

  
$  9.32

Proceeds from stock options exercised................ 532 1,111  6,362
Tax benefits related to stock options exercised ... 92 386  1,748
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised ............. 246 1,046  4,730

 
7. Employee Benefits Plans 
 
Defined Contribution Plan 
 
 We maintain a defined contribution plan covering substantially all of our employees and make discretionary 
matching and profit sharing contributions.  The total plan cost, including employer contributions, was $1.1 million in 
2007, $1.5 million in 2006 and $1.7 million in 2005. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Employee Benefits Plans (continued) 
 
Pension Plans 
 
 In July 2006, we announced our decision to terminate our defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”).  No 
benefits have accrued under the plan since it was frozen in December 1995, at which time our contributions to a 
401(k) savings plan became the primary retirement benefit. Final distribution of assets and termination of our defined 
benefit pension plan occurred during 2007, resulting in a settlement charge to earnings of $6.6 million pretax, or $4.5 
million after taxes, and a final cash contribution of $1.6 million. We made no cash contributions to the Stanley 
Retirement Plan in 2006. Our supplemental plan (a nonqualified plan) was not affected by the termination. 
 
 We adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pension and other Postretirement Plans, an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 
and 132 (R),” as of December 31, 2006. 
 
  The financial status of the plans at December 31 follows (in thousands):      
  

  2007        2006  
  Stanley  Supple-  Stanley Supple- 
  Retirement  mental  Retirement mental 
        Plan         Plan        Plan        Plan 
Change in benefit obligation:   
 Beginning benefit obligation ....................  $15,065 $  1,979 $14,197 $  2,084 
 Interest cost .............................................  157 115 818 110 
 Actuarial loss ...........................................  408 (14) 2,479 (57) 
 Benefits paid............................................          (96)       (159)    (2,429)       (158) 
  Plan termination payments......................   (15,534)       
 Ending benefit obligation .......................        1,921   15,065     1,979 
Change in plan assets:      
 Beginning fair value of plan assets..........  13,914  15,254  
 Actual return on plan assets ....................  113  1,089  
 Employer contributions ............................  1,603 159  158 
 Benefits paid............................................   (15,630)       (159)    (2,429)       (158) 
 Ending fair value of plan assets ............           13,914      
Funded status............................................  $  $ (1,921) $ (1,151) $ (1,979) 
 
Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet: 
 Current liabilities .......................................  $    (159) $ (1,151) $   (159) 
 Non current liabilities ................................      (1,762)      (1,820) 
 Total .....................................................  $ $ (1,921) $ (1,151) $ (1,979) 
 
 In 2006, in order to provide the necessary liquidity for final distribution of plan assets, we moved plan assets to 
short term investments. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Employee Benefits Plans (continued) 
 
 Components of pension cost follow (in thousands): 
 

   2007   2006   2005  
Interest cost ...........................................  $    272 $    928 $   939 
Expected return on plan assets.............      (188)     (982) (1,009) 
Net amortization and deferral ................        219      500      437 
 Net cost................................................        303      446      367 
Settlement expense...............................     6,606      904      985 
 Total expense ......................................  $ 6,909 $1,350 $1,352 

 
 The assumptions used to determine the plans’ financial status and pension cost were: 
 

  2007 2006 2005 
Discount rate for funded status ........    6.20% (a) 5.75%/5.00%(b)   5.50% 
Discount rate for pension cost..........  5.75%/5.00%(b)   5.50%   5.50% 
Return on assets ..............................     6.50%   6.50% 
(a) Rate relates to the Supplemental Plan. 
(b) The 5.75% relates to the Supplemental Plan. The Stanley Retirement Plan used a discount rate of 5.00%, 
 which is the rate that was used at distribution. 

 
 Estimated future benefit payments for the supplemental plan are $158,000 in 2008, $156,000 in 2009, 
$154,000 in 2010, $151,000 in 2011, $152,000 in 2012, and a total of $740,000 from 2013 through 2017. 
 
 Our pension expense is developed from actuarial valuations.  Interest rates used in these valuations are key 
assumptions, including discount rates used in determining the present value of future benefit payments and expected 
return on plan assets, which are reviewed and updated on an annual basis at the beginning of each year.  We are 
required to consider current market conditions, including changes in interest rates, in making assumptions.  In 
establishing our expected return on assets assumption, we review asset allocation considering plan maturity and 
develop return assumptions based on different asset classes adjusting for plan operating expenses.  The return 
assumptions are established after reviewing historical returns of broader market indexes, as well as historical 
performance of the investments of The Stanley Retirement Plan.  For 2007, the discount rate was based on the rate 
at which benefits would be calculated on the distribution date and the return on assets was based on returns 
expected from short term investments. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Employee Benefits Plans (continued) 
 
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 
 We provide health care benefits to eligible retired employees between the ages of 55 and 65 and provide life 
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees from age 55 until death.  The plan’s financial status at December 31, 
the measurement date, follows (in thousands): 
 

   2007   2006 
Change in benefit obligation:   
 Beginning benefit obligation .......................................  $ 2,876  $ 3,298
 Service cost................................................................  79  71
 Interest cost................................................................  172  155
 Actuarial (gain) loss....................................................  141  (299)
 Plan participants’ contributions ..................................  193  170
 Benefits paid...............................................................      (507)      (435)
 Amendments..............................................................          (84)
 Ending benefit obligation..........................................     2,954    2,876
Change in plan assets:   
 Beginning fair value of plan assets ............................   
 Employer contributions...............................................  314  265
 Plan participants’ contributions ..................................  193  170
 Benefits paid...............................................................       (507)       (435)
 Ending fair value of plan assets ...............................      
Funded status ..............................................................  $(2,954)  $(2,876)

 
 Amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet: 

Current liabilities...........................................................  $    295  $    251
Non current liabilities....................................................     2,659     2,625
 Total ...........................................................................  $ 2,954  $ 2,876

 
 Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost were (in thousands): 

  2007  2006  2005
Service cost ...............................................................  $  79  $  71  $  88
Interest cost ...............................................................  172  155  183
Amortization of transition obligation ..........................  122  122  130
Amortization of net actuarial loss ..............................      39      27      66
 Net periodic postretirement benefit cost ..................  $412  $375  $467

 
 The assumptions used to determine the plan’s financial status and postretirement benefit cost: 

  2007  2006  2005 
Discount rate for funded status.................................................  6.05%  5.75%  5.50% 
Discount rate for postretirement benefit cost............................  5.75%  5.50%  5.50% 
Health care cost assumed trend rate for next year ..................  8.00%  9.00%  9.50% 
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually declines to ...................  5.50%  5.50%  5.50% 
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to      
 remain at .................................................................................  2010  2010  2010 

 
 An increase or decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate of one percentage point in each future 
year would affect the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2007 by approximately 
$156,000 and the annual postretirement benefit cost by approximately $20,200. 
 
 Estimated future benefit payments are $295,000 in 2008, $290,000 in 2009, $287,000 in 2010, $274,000 in 
2011, 277,000 in 2012 and a total of $1.4 million from 2013 through 2017. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
7. Employee Benefits Plans (continued) 
 
 Since the postretirement benefits other than pension do not cover any benefits after age 65, the Medicare 
Prescription Drug Act will have no impact on the benefits provided under this plan. 
  
 The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as components 
of net periodic benefit cost at December 31, 2007, are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 Stanley 
Retirement 

Plan 

 
Supplemental 

Plan 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
Net loss ................................  $207     $   742 
Net transition obligation........            582 
  Total ...................................   $207   $1,324 

 
 The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive incomes that are expected to be recognized as 
components of net periodic benefit cost during 2008 are as follows (in thousands): 
 

 Stanley 
Retirement  

Plan 

 
Supplemental 

Plan 

Other 
Postretirement 

Benefits 
Net loss ................................               $  23 
Net transition obligation........                   122 
  Total ...................................                 $145 

 
Deferred Compensation 
 
 We have a deferred compensation plan, funded with life insurance policies, which permitted certain 
management employees to defer portions of their compensation and earn a fixed rate of return.  No deferrals have 
been made since 1991.  The accrued liabilities relating to this of $1.7 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are 
included in accrued salaries, wages and benefits and other long-term liabilities.  The cash surrender value, net of 
policy loans, is included in other assets.  Policy loan interest of $1.5 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million was charged 
to interest expense in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 
8.    Restructuring Charge 
 
 In the fourth quarter of 2007, we approved a plan to convert our Martinsville, Virginia facility from a 
manufacturing to a warehouse operation.  As a result, we recorded a charge to cost of goods sold of $3.6 million in 
the fourth quarter of 2007, which consisted mainly of higher depreciation charges due to shorter useful lives of 
machinery and equipment. 
 
9. Income for Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act 
 
 We recorded income of $10.4 million, net of legal expenses from the receipt of funds under the Continued 
Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act of 2000 (CDSOA) and related settlement payments in connection with the case 
involving wooden bedroom furniture imported from China. The CDSOA provides for the distribution of monies 
collected by the U.S. Customs and Border Protection from antidumping cases to qualified domestic producers, in 
cases where domestic producers continue to invest in their technology, equipment, and people. CDSOA Funds 
recorded in 2006 were $4.4 million, net of legal expenses and tariff adjustments. 
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STANLEY FURNITURE COMPANY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
10.  Commitments and Contingencies 
 

We lease warehouse space, showroom space and certain technology equipment.  Rental expenses charged 
to operations were $2.7 million, $3.2 million and $3.5 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Future minimum 
lease payments are approximately as follows: 2008- $781,000; 2009 - $617,000; 2010 - $70,000, 2011 - $0 and 
2012- $0. 
 
 In the normal course of business, we are involved in claims and lawsuits, none of which currently, in 
management’s opinion, will have a material adverse affect on our Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
11. New Accounting Standards 
 
 In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). This standard clarifies the principle 
that fair value should be based on the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or 
liability. Additionally, it establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those 
assumptions. We have not yet determined the impact that the implementation of SFAS No. 157 will have on our 
results of operations or financial condition. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2007. 
 
12. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited) 
   (in thousands, except per share data) 
2007 Quarters:  First  Second  Third   Fourth 
Net Sales .....................................   $75,108   $67,722  $73,181  $66,836 
Gross profit .................................     13,494     13,640    12,749      7,027 
Net income ..................................       1,676      (2,376)(1)      1,635      4,967(2)(3) 
Net income per share:         
 Basic .........................................   $      .16  $     .23  $     .16          .48(2)(3) 
 Diluted.......................................           .15         .23         .16          .48(2)(3) 
Dividend paid per share.............           .10         .10         .10          .10 
         
2006 Quarters:         
Net sales.......................................   $83,524  $77,476  $75,911  $70,636 
Gross profit ...................................     19,758    17,618    14,960    12,532 
Net income ...................................       5,392      3,937      2,996      4,456(4) 
Net income per share:         
 Basic ..........................................   $      .44  $     .33  $      .26  $      .41(4) 
 Diluted........................................            .43         .32          .26          .40(4) 
Dividend paid per share ...............            .08         .08          .08          .08 
 

(1) Includes pension plan termination charge of $4.5 million, or $.42 per share. 
(2) Includes $7.0 million, or $.66 per share, of income from Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act receipts. 
(3) Includes pretax restructuring charge of $3.6 million ($2.4 million after tax) or $.23 per share, for the conversion of one of 

our manufacturing facilities to a warehouse operation. 
(4) Includes $2.9 million, or $.26 per share, of income from Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act receipts.
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(In thousands, except per share and employee data)                    

Income Statement: 2007 2006 2005 2004(5) 2003(5) 2002(5) 2001(5) 2000(5) 1999(5) 1998(5) 1997(5) 
 Net sales   $282,847   $307,547   $333,646   $305,815   $265,263   $243,547   $238,292   $287,562   $268,585   $250,875   $214,964 

 Cost of sales  (1) 235,937   242,679   251,937   230,174   203,410   184,967   185,326   218,969   200,499   190,435   162,512 

 Restructuring charge (2)               3,548   2,290     

   Gross profit  46,910   64,868   81,709   75,641   61,853   55,032   50,676   68,593   68,086   60,440   52,452 

 Selling, general and administrative expenses 39,573   42,139   44,267   40,953   35,637   32,671   30,482   33,656   33,796   32,496   29,949 

 Pension plan termination charge (3) 6,605           

 Unusual charge (4)        2,800     

 Restructuring charge (2)        733     

   Operating income  732   22,729   37,442   34,688   26,216   22,361   16,661   34,937   34,290   27,944   22,503 

 Income from Continued Dumping  
   and Subsidy Offset Act, net 10,429   4,419          

 Other income (expense) 265  297  288   188   203   219   (47)  82   (388)  (411)  (276)

 Interest expense, net 2,679   1,710   1,825   2,343   2,748   3,090   4,007   4,003   3,478   4,164   3,538 

   Income before income taxes  8,747   25,735   35,905   32,533   23,671   19,490   12,607   31,016   30,424   23,369   18,689 

 Income taxes 2,845   8,954   12,674   11,744   8,521   6,919   4,286   11,476   11,211   8,886   7,102 

   Net income $    5,902   $  16,781   $  23,231   $  20,789   $  15,150   $  12,571   $    8,321   $  19,540   $  19,213   $  14,483   $  11,587 

            

 Basic earnings per share  $        .56   $      1.44   $      1.82   $      1.65   $      1.20   $        .95   $        .63   $      1.38   $      1.35   $       1.04   $        .69 

 Diluted earnings per share  $        .55   $      1.41   $      1.77   $      1.59   $      1.17   $        .93   $        .61   $      1.32   $      1.24   $         .91   $        .63 

 Dividends paid per share (6)  $        .40   $        .32   $        .24   $        .20   $        .10       

            

Income statement ratios and other data:            
Gross profit as a percent of net sales (1) 16.6% 21.1% 24.5% 24.7% 23.3% 22.6% 21.3% 23.9% 25.3% 24.1% 24.4%

Operating income as a percent of net sales .3% 7.4% 11.2% 11.3% 9.9% 9.2% 7.0% 12.1% 12.8% 11.1% 10.5%

Net income as a percent of net sales 2.1% 5.5% 7.0% 6.8% 5.7% 5.2% 3.5% 6.8% 7.2% 5.8% 5.4%

Income taxes as a percentage of pretax income 32.5% 34.8% 35.3% 36.1% 36.0% 35.5% 34.0% 37.0% 36.8% 38.0% 38.0%

Depreciation and amortization (1)  $     9,054   $    5,837   $    5,670   $    5,622   $    5,783   $    7,693   $    8,455   $    8,141   $    6,347   $    5,775   $    5,432 

            

Balance sheet and other data:

Cash $  31,648     $    6,269   $  12,556   $    7,632   $    2,509   $    9,227   $    1,955   $    1,825   $    3,597   $    6,791   $       756 

Inventories 58,086   59,364   69,961   73,658   54,638   54,158   49,522   54,423   43,580   46,514   45,730 

Current maturities of long-term debt 1,428   2,857   2,857   4,257   7,014   6,914   6,839   6,714   5,236   5,136   5,086 

Working capital (excluding cash and  
       current maturities of long-term debt) 61,632   68,624   81,501   85,192   68,960   60,631   56,155   58,648   40,170   42,753   45,770 

Total assets 173,731   162,678   190,488   188,888   164,203   172,485   163,003   179,206   170,522   154,374   143,225 

Long-term debt including current maturities 30,714   8,571   11,428   15,685   22,700   29,614   37,053   52,169   38,404   43,539   52,577 

Stockholders’ equity  102,851   109,647   132,749   127,265   102,558   99,687   87,294   79,477   79,573   62,368   48,247 

Capital expenditures (7) 3,951   4,196   4,986   1,718   1,243   1,037   4,172   6,068   25,566   6,680   4,076 

Ratio of total debt to total capitalization (8) 23.0% 7.3% 7.9% 11.0% 18.1% 22.9% 29.8% 39.6% 32.6% 41.1% 52.1%

Employees 1,800   2,200   2,500   2,600   2,500   2,600   3,050   3,350   3,100   2,875   2,800 

Stock repurchases:           

  Shares  639   1,423   1,057       1,131   317   172   1,739   454   630   4,653 

  Total cost $  13,557   $  33,576   $  22,993      $  14,788   $    3,066   $    1,973   $  19,754   $    4,708   $    5,553   $  25,330 

Closing stock price   $    12.00   $    21.45   $    23.18   $    22.48   $    15.75   $    11.63   $    11.89   $    12.06   $      9.19   $      9.13   $      6.97

(1)  Included in cost of sales in 2007 is $3.6 million 
(including $3.1 million of accelerated depreciation)  
for the conversion of one of our manufacturing 
facilities to a warehousing operation.

(2)  We recorded restructuring and related charges in 2002 
of $3.5 million and $3.0 million in 2001 for a plant 
closure.

(3)  We terminated our defined benefit pension plan 
in 2007, resulting in a charge to earnings of $6.6 
million.

(4)  In 2001, we recorded a $2.8 million charge to write off 
amounts due from a major customer.

(5)  Amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect 
the two-for-one stock splits, distributed in the form of 
a stock dividend, on May 15, 1998 and June 6, 2005.

(6)  No dividends were paid on our common stock prior 
to 2003.

(7)  In 1999, we spent $10 million on expansion projects 
at existing facilities and $15 million to purchase and 
equip a new facility.

(8)  Total capitalization includes total debt and 
stockholders’ equity.

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA
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